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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Jiangiang (Chairman)

Mr. Tao Qingrong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yu Yaoming

Non-executive Director
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Lin Zhijun

Dr. Zhang Weijiong

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.0O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KYI-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Suite 1508, 15/F
Cityplaza Four

12 Taikoo Wan Road
Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong

HEAD OFFICE

26/F, Wuxi Jinling Hotel
No.1 Xiangian East Street
Wuxi City, Jiangsu, PRC

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Hon Yin Wah, Eva

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr. Lin Zhijun (Chairman)
Dr. Zhang Weijiong
Mr. Cheung Yat Ming
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Regional focus On Greater Yangtze River Delta
Springland International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) engage in the operation
and management of department stores and supermarkets
in PRC. The Group is a geographically focused and
dual-format retail chain operator in the Greater Yangtze
River Delta. The Group operates and manages total 49
stores in 16 cities, which mostly in Jiangsu Province,
Anhui Province and Zhejiang Province.

Dual-format retail operator

The business on department store and supermarket
benefits each other complementary. This dual-format
retail business creates “one-stop” shopping experience
for the customers and caters for a diversity of client-tail
in order to well serve their needs and preferences from
daily necessities to valuable goods and accessories. The
Group’s department store and city centre supermarkets
are in distance close to each other, either in adjacent
sites or the same building. It forms a retail hub that offers
consumers a more convenient and comfortable shopping
environment and experience.

This retail business model generates diversified revenue
sources while lowering the operational risks, creating
synergies between department store and supermarket
businesses and enjoying greater economic of sales. The
Group’s solid experience in the retail business, in-depth
knowledge of the retail industry and the prime retail
locations of the stores enable store in the Group’s retail
network to enjoy advantages over competitors in the
respective regions.
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Stores situated on prime sites and self-owned
properties

The prime locations of the stores occupied are absolute
advantage for the success of the Group’s retail business.
All of the department stores and city centre supermarkets
are located in prime retail space and shopping districts
of the cities with high population density. The community
centre supermarkets are located in encircling communities
with dense population and convenient logistics. The
Group obtains a maximum exposure and direct access
to customers’ attention. The strengthen empowers the
Group’s strategic advantage over the competitors and
guarantees the leading position on market.

The total gross floor areas of the properties occupied by
the Group is 993,000 sqg. meters among which, 645,000
sqg. meters owned by the Group. The Group’s department
stores and supermarkets are sited in self-owned
properties reach 80.1% and 31.7% of the total gross
floor areas respectively. This arrangement benefits the
Group being immune from any affection of rental increase
and minimizes the risks of relocation and disruption of
business operation in future as well. Other premises
secure through long-term leases that typically have a long-
term lease of 15-20 years.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

During 2013, the Euro zone showed a recovery from the
debt crisis and the employment and real estate markets
in the US have also made significant improvement. China,
as the world’s second largest economy, registered a
moderate increase of 7.7% in gross domestic product
(“GDP”), which was higher than the government target
of 7.5% even if it is the lowest one since 1999. Chinese
government launched a series of reform measures
to stimulate the domestic consumption and boost its
economy. Meanwhile, it also adopted relatively stringent
regulatory measures towards the real estate and credit
market and strived to fight against corruption. In the long
run, these policies and measures are helpful to stabilize
the retail markets to a certain extent. In 2013, the total
retail sales of consumer goods in China recorded an
increase of 13.1% when compared with 2012, which was
lower than the growth rate of 14.3% recorded in 2012.
As compared with the transformation in the development
pattern of China’s economy, new technologies have
affected the consumer behaviours in China substantially
and exerted pressure on the business model of traditional
retail businesses, which spells out the necessity of
reform. Amidst the intense competition between retailers,
we can see that only the strong survives, and China’s
consumers have become smarter and picky for premium
products and services with more affordable price.
With this regard, the retailers are working out timely
strategies to accommodate to the ever-changing business
environment.

Amidst a mediocre business environment and challenging
market conditions, the Group maintained an approach
of prudent development and precise operation for its
business and succeeded in delivering continual growth
accordingly. Each segment of the Group’s business has
recorded satisfactory progress, thereby laying a solid
ground for the Group’s sustainable development in future.
In 2013, the total sales proceeds of the Group increased
by 12.9% to RMB11.1 billion as compared with the
previous year. The profit attributable to owners of the
parent rose to RMB730 million by 12.1% as compared
with previous year and the basic earnings per share also
increased to RMB29 cents. The Board proposed a final
dividend of HK$8.5 cents per share for the year ended
31 December 2013. The financial performance and the
benchmark figures showed the Group has been on the
path of steady growth.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREHES

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

In 2013, the Group‘s operation focused on reinforcing the
interaction between the corporation and consumers and
building a trustworthy connection between both sides.
In this regard, the Group highlighted the experiential
consumption concept in the stores, intensified the
consolidation of regional resources and enhanced the
efficiency of stores in the interactive sales and marketing
module. Regarding themed and large scale activities, the
Group particularly endeavored to make ready and promote
the concepts of “interactive decoration”, “interaction with
branding effect”, and “interaction with district/business
circle effect” in a pattern comparable to “shopping mall”,
for the sake of providing the customers with brand new
shopping experience. The Group made a breakthrough
in new media communication in 2013. Firstly, all of the
Group’s stores have been fully covered by WIFI so as
to help us gradually implement the precise sales and
marketing strategy supported by “Big Data”. Secondly,
the usage of applications like Weibo, WeChat, QR codes
and “Mobile Yaohan” facilitated the interaction and
communication with consumers. Thirdly, certain themed
and festival microfilms have been succeeded in promoting
the interaction and communication amongst local
consumers, and indoctrinating the passion and character
of the brands to consumers. Meanwhile, the sales on the
three main festival days of Springland still brought about
enormous contribution.

In 2013, sales of fresh food and membership sales
have been the main factor curbing the drop of sales of
supermarkets, which even brought up the growth rate
of same store sales. For sales of fresh food, the Group
further uplifted the ratio of direct procurement and
kept identifying and developing agricultural production
bases for Datonghua Supermarket, built up an extensive
and nationwide long-and-short-haul procurement
system and set up a long-term, stable and harmonious
production-and-sales connection with peasants, aiming
at building an agricultural-supermarket connection
for agricultural products straight from the field to
supermarkets. For membership sales, the Group managed
to enhance the privileges offered to the Group’s core
membership, and also introduced the weekly Thanksgiving
Day starting from the second quarter which brought about
a sustainable and reliable growth in membership sales.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In order to capitalize on the efforts on optimizing the
Group’s store portfolio, upgrading the store image and
the improving the operation efficiency, the Group has
also completed corresponding improvement works in
Yixing (Hexin) Springland, Changshu Springland, Jiangyin
Springland and Nanjing Yaohan in 2013. The Group will
also kick off the follow-up upgrading works in Yixing
Springland, Changshu Springland and Jiangyin Springland
in 2014. The management strongly believes that the above
projects will be able to enhance the competitiveness and
profitability of the stores.

Regarding store expansion, the Group will continue to pay
close attention to develop new stores capable of providing
quality services and valuable products within the Group’s
strategic districts according to its 3-year expansion
plan. The Group will make use of the competitive edges
accumulated in the existing scope of business on one
hand and increase the number of stores in a prudent way
on the other hand. In 2013, the Group has opened four
new supermarkets in Taixing, Wuxi and Jiangyin cities,
Jiangsu Province and entered into agreements in respect
of the shopping mall project in Xishan, Wuxi city and
three new supermarkets in Nantong, Zhenjiang and Yixing
cities, Jiangsu Province respectively. Among the projects
mentioned above, the Xishan shopping mall project will
become a major and yet critical attempt for the Group in
the development of new shopping malls.

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, beneficial factors are developing in the
long term and the recovery of the global economy starts
to resume. Meanwhile, the recovery of developed markets
becomes more significant, which is driven by the organic
growth of market itself rather than provisional policies.
Barring any significant hindrance in the global economy, it
is expected that the retail market in China would record a
steady growth in 2014. China’s consumption market may
be slowdown as compared with the rapid growth recorded
recent years. However, various economic measures
launched by the Chinese government are expected to
eliminate people’s uncertainties, and to reinforce their
confidence in, and willingness to, spending money. In
addition, urbanization and expansion of middle-class in
China will also drive up the spending in the domestic
market.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREHES

Under this environment, the Group strongly believes
that a sizable and traditional retail entity will be able to
maintain its advantageous position in a highly competitive
market so long as it is willing to upgrade itself and open
to innovative ideas. The Group’s sound financial position
and chained operating structure in strategic regions can
certainly help its business to take advantages in terms of
management, sales activities and risk taking. The Group
will continue to implement and follow the long-term
and specific operating strategy to intensify the store
optimization plan and enrich the product mix for the sake
of providing quality services to the customers, satisfying
their requirement on higher living standard and maximizing
the return to shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to send my gratitude
and thanks to all the Directors, senior management

and staff and express my sincere appreciation for their
invaluable contribution and continual efforts to the Group.

Chen Jiangiang
Chairman

11 March 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRE D

BUSINESS REVIEW

Amidst a mediocre business environment and challenging
market conditions, the Group maintained a prudent
approach for its business and succeeded in delivering
continual growth accordingly. Each segment of the
Group’s business has recorded satisfactory progress,
thereby laying a solid ground for the Group’s sustainable
development in future. In 2013, the total sales proceeds
of the Group increased by 12.9% to RMB11.1 billion as
compared with the previous year. The profit attributable
to owners of the parent rose to RMB730 million by 12.1%
as compared with previous year and the basic earnings
per also share increased to RMBO0.29. According to the
financial performance and trend of other benchmarking
figures, the Group recorded a steady growth.

New Store Openings and Network Expansion

In April 2013, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest of Nanjing Yaohan Commerce & Trade Co. Ltd.
Nanjing Yaohan Commerce & Trade Co. Ltd engaged
in the operation of a department store, Nanjing Yaohan
Store, in Nanjing, Jiangsu Province. Nanjing Yaohan Store
has gross floor areas of 23,000 square meters and was
opened in September 2008.

In October 2013, the Group successfully acquired a piece
of land with a floor area of approximately 61K square
meters in Wuxi, Jiangsu Province. The land is situated
at the intersection of Xihu Road and Bai Zhuang Road.
The Group plans to build a shopping mall, with total
gross floor area of approximately 200,000 square meters,
which included a self-operated department store and
supermarket.

During 2013, 4 new supermarkets were opened in
Taixing, Jiangyin, Wuxi cities, Jiangsu Province, and they
located along the existence logistic routes in Yixing. The
opening of the new supermarkets enhanced the Group
“1+N” expansion strategy for the supermarket business,
improved the logistics efficiency and so enhanced the
quality of the products.

As of 31 December 2013, the Group had a total
operational floor area of 692,000 sqg. meters (2012:
650,000 sq. meters), in which 517,000 sqg. meters (2012:
495,000 sg. meters) is operated by the department
store business and 175,000 sg. meters (2012: 155,000
sg. meters) is operated by the supermarket business.
Moreover, the Group has land areas and contracted land
areas of total 152,000 square meters in Anging, Anhui
Province; Jiaxing, Zhejiang Province; Yixing and Wuxi,
Jiangsu Province. The lands are under construction for
shopping malls with gross floor areas of 690,000 square
meters.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL RESULTS MBRE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3BLEE
2013 2012 Increase
—E8-Z=% —T-CF 25
(RMB milion)
(ANR®EET)

Total sales proceeds (“TSP")’ HEMSHERE 11,135 9,859 12.9%
Department store EE 8,470 7,442 13.8%
Supermarket i 2,665 2,417 10.3%

Revenue WA 4,162 3,807 9.3%

Operating profit2 mE R TP 1,026 948 8.2%

Profit attributable to owners of the parent &2 Bl H A FE 15 i A 730 651 12.1%

Earnings per share (RMB: cents) BREH(ARE : 5) 29 26 12.1%

Operating margin® (in term of TSP) BE BRI (REEMBRBLEE)
~ department store -BEE 10.3% 10.2%

- supermarket -8 5.7% 7.9%

Net profit margin* (in term of TSP) FonFl R (R HEF S HB B 6.6% 6.7%

The Group’s TSP, revenue and profit attributable to
owners of the parent reached record highs in 2013. The
results are attributable to same store sales growth of
department stores and the Group’s continuous efforts in
maximizing operational efficiency. However, the Group
opened new stores and faced intensified competition
in the supermarket business. Operating margins for the
supermarket business dropped 2.2% year-on-year from
7.9% in 2012 to 5.7% in 2013.

013 E - AEBEHEMSHNIALTE
WARESRRHEB AER SR eI TE
FHE e EEMNMEENREEENR LI
ERAEEFERNNELEWNENRT - A
M EBEMESIE AEERKXFIESE -
FEHHUNFES  FEBEME&ERF R
20124 H97.9%[%& Z2013FE H)5.7% * @t T
[£2.2% °

1 gross revenue from concessionaire sales + revenue from direct sales + rental income

R ELHE RALE+ BERHERAESRA

2 operating profit of department store + operating profit of supermarket

BERE R+ BTALRT
3 operating profit/TSP

EERREE TSR IERE
4 profit for the year/TSP

ST Al PSR IB A EE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DN

TSP HEMBRELAE
Year ended 31 December
HZ12B31BLEE
2013 2012
—E-ZE —E2--F
Department Department
Store Supermarket Store  Supermarket
business business Total business business Total
BEEE  ETER £ BEER  ANER At
(RMB million)
(AR%BET)
Revenue (as reported) BP (MFREMR) 1,685 2471 4,162 1,551 2,256 3,807
Add/(less) %/ (%)
Provision of food and beverage services  REZHRE - (13) (13) - (15) (15)
Commission income from REKTERHE
concessionarre sales GEION (1,347) (40) (1,387) (1,216) (33) (1,249)
Gross revenue of concessionaire sales BHEESHEMER 8,132 24 8,373 7,107 209 7,316
TSP BERGRBLE 8,470 2,665 11,135 7,442 2,47 9,859
Direct sales ERHE 211 2,380 2,657 286 2,169 2,455
Gross revenue of concessionaire sales BEesENER 8,132 24 8,373 7,107 209 7,316
Rental income BEBA 61 44 105 49 39 88
TSP BEMETERE 8,470 2,665 11,135 7,442 2,417 9,859
Same Store sales growth AEHELER 74% -0.9% 8.8% -1.0%
Department Store Business: HEXEF:

TSP from the department store business grew to
RMB8,470 million (2012: RMB7,442 million) was mainly
attributable to same store sales growth of approximately
7.1%. Direct sales as a percentage of TSP from the
department store business decreased from 3.9% to
3.3% while gross revenue of concessionaire sales as a
percentage of TSP from the department store business
increased from 95.5% to 96.0% in 2013. The changes
were primarily due to a change in the sales model for gold
and jewelry from direct sales to a concessionaire sales
model.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TSP by Top Five Stores

With the increase in TSP contributions from younger
stores, Wuxi Yaohan store’s contribution to TSP of the
department store business decreased from 21.5% to
19.0%. The five largest stores aggregate contribution to
TSP decreased from 65.7% to 60.7% for 2013.

BEEENWE D

B T K S 4 2 35 B AT 78 3 TE AR BE () & Bt
AR AEFENERIE TN - EH NG
HEEXKHENSIEAENERE DT
H421.5%f%E19.0% - I AREEEHEE
ETSSHE B RIEAEN RATERIL465.7%
% Z=2013F B9 4760.7% °

2013 2012

—E—-=F —E-—fF
TSP TSP TSP TSP
$§EFr¥E  Contribution HEMS Contribution
HIBHAE HEMS FIBRTE SHE TS
(RMB million) MIEHE  (RMB million) SRIEABRE
(AR®EEBR) BRtE (ARBBEETL) BRiE
Wuxi Yaohan a5\ AE 1,607 19.0% 1,598 21.5%
Zhenijiang Yaohan BT \AER 1,167 13.8% 941 12.6%
Jiangyin Springland LR EEM 966 11.4% 947 12.7%
Yixing Springland B EE 809 9.5% 841 11.3%
Liyang Yaohan B A 591 7.0% 567 7.6%
Others Hh 3,330 39.3% 2,548 34.3%
8,470 100% 7,442 100%

TSP by Merchandise Categories

In 2013, fashion and apparel accounted for approximately
38.7% (2012: 40.9%); merchandise related to cosmetics
accounted for approximately 5.0% (2012: 4.6%); watches,
gold and jewelry accounted for approximately 26.8%
(2012: 23.5%); footwear accounted for approximately
10.4% (2012: 11.0%) and the remaining categories
including athletic apparel and casual wear, children’s and
home furnishing, household and electronic appliances,
rental income and others accounted for the remaining
19.1% (2012: 20.0%) of TSP of the department stores
business. The proportion of sales proceeds of department
stores from various merchandise categories are presented
in the below charts.

Department Store - 2013
BE

Fashion and apparel

i 255 1% AR £

Watches, gold and jewelry
fE - KRB KA
Cosmetics

kA% o

Footwear

®HE

Others

EH A
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2013F  BFE R REIGEEMBREHAE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRE D

Commission Rate from Concessionaire Sales and
Comprehensive Gross Margin®

In 2013, the commission rate from concessionaire sales
was 16.6%, representing a reduction of 0.5 percentage
point from 17.1% in 2012. The decrease was mainly due
to the increased contribution from low commission rate
merchandise related to cosmetics, watches, gold and
jewelry. The Comprehensive Gross Margin was 20.7% in
2013 and it was similar to that of 2012.

Supermarket Business:

In 2013, TSP of the supermarket business reached
RMB2,665 million (2012: RMB2,417 million). Growth
in TSP arose from proceeds from newly opened
supermarkets. Increase number of store in the region
by the Group, intensified competition and economic
slowdown in PRC resulted in a same store sales drop of
approximately 0.9%.

TSP by Top Five Stores

The aggregate contribution to TSP generated from
the supermarket business from the five largest stores
decreased from approximately 45.7% to 39.7% for 20183.
The proceeds from supermarkets opened in 2012 and
2013 (proceeds not included in calculating the same
store sales growth) accounted for 16.1% of TSP for the
supermarket business. These stores are expected to
become a new driving force for the supermarket business
of the Group.

W ELHE Mo E R EFF

R2013F E BEERFTELEHEMEXA
16.6% @ BA2012417 1% 4B L T FR0.5E " &
oML EEHR AL ERBYRENLA
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F RPN E R AESBMESNR L HE
EEETBA0.9% -

BT 1 K5 4 21 88 B AT 12 50 IR A8 BB 1 & Bt
AAANEEBMEBHEENSRNELATENER
5T B A A 4945. 7% 22013F 1989.7% © 1
20124 [ 2013 F E# MR B H B
T EMSHIBREER516.1% (ZHEEFT
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s -

5 Comprehensive Gross Margin = (gross profit of direct sales + commission income from concessionaire sales + rental
income + other income (service fee collected from concessionaire and suppliers))/TSP.

SEENETAGAENRUBENSRERLEFTENS SAENEREERHEEEN BHIEHEMASEA  H2

WAREMBBA(EZREFFEEHRERAORGEE) -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TSP by Merchandise Categories

Fresh food accounted for approximately 38.6%
(2012: 35.7%), dry foods accounted for approximately
30.2% (2012: 31.8%), non-food accounted for
approximately 26.7% (2012: 27.6%) and the remaining
categories including rental income and others accounted
for the remaining 4.5% (2012: 4.9%) of the TSP of the
supermarket business. The proportion of sales proceeds
of supermarket business from various merchandise
categories are presented in the below charts.

Supermarket - 2013
i

Fresh food
MERS
Dry food

"ruas
Non-food merchandise
FRME
Others
Eh

Direct Sales Margin and Comprehensive Gross Margin

In 2013, revenue from direct sales in the supermarket
business increased to RMB2,380 million from
RMB2,169 million, representing a rise of 9.8%. The
direct sales margin stayed at 12.9% (2012: 14.0%).
The Comprehensive Gross Margin reached 23.3%
(2012: 24.5%). The Group intended to maintain the
Comprehensive Gross Margin stable by increasing
investments in equipment and technology to expand the
contribution from fresh food and to enhance food quality
and reduce wastage.

BEEENWE D

B B FIG 1H EAT 1R 5 B AR B B 77
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRE D

Expenses
=3¢
Year ended 31 December
BENANALER
2013 2012
Zg-If ZR-CF
Department % of TSP Department % of TSP
store Supermarket e store  Supermarket (315
business  business Headquarter Total  fiBFE  busness  business  Headquarter Totd  FBHA
BEER  BOEH £ @ GEEAM  BERE E0EB &y B EEAAL
(RMB million) IRMB il
(AE®EER) (AREEET)
St costs BIHA 2%7 2 85 513 54% P& 186 74 483 4.9%
Depreciation and 7€ i 84
amortisation 28 66 4 318 2.9% 194 5% 4 254 2.6%
Rental expenses SR 2 54 5 81 0.7% 16 49 3 68 0.7%
Other expenses ZHEE 339 129 26 494 4.5% 352 10 2 489 49%
Total expenses ~ EFIE3T 876 470 120 1,466 13.2% 785 40 108 1,294 13.1%

Expenses consisted of staff costs, depreciation and
amortisation, rental expenses and other expenses. Other
expenses mainly include utility expenses, advertising and
promotion expenses, losses on disposal of property, plant
and equipment, office expenses, maintenance costs,
travelling expenses, entertainment expenses, property
tax and government surcharges and other miscellaneous
expenses.

Total expenses of the Group as a percentage of TSP
was 13.3% for 2013 and it was flat compared with 2012.
Total expenses increased 13.3% to RMB1,466 million
(2012: RMB1,294 million) as we continued to expand the
store networks and upgrade the shopping environment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fee Income from Suppliers and Operating Profit
Margin

Fee Income from suppliers increased to RMB517 million in
2013 (2012: RMB439 million), fee income from suppliers
as a percentage of TSP increased to approximately 4.6%
for 2013 compared to 4.5% for 2012.

Operating profits for the Group (excluded interest and
dividend income and unallocated gains, corporate
and other unallocated expenses and finance costs)
increased to approximately RMB1,026 million in 2013
from RMB948 million for the same period in 2012,
representing a year-on-year increase of 8.2%. Operating
profits for the department store business increased to
approximately RMB874 million in 2013 from RMB757
million in 2012, representing a year-on-year increase of
15.5%. The operation margin as a percentage of TSP
for the department store business stayed at 10.3%
(2012: 10.2%). For the supermarket business, operating
profits decreased to approximately RMB152 million.
However the operating margin as a percentage of TSP
for the supermarket business was 5.7%, representing a
decline of 2.2 percentage point from 7.9% in 2012. The
decrease was due to pre-operation costs and higher
operating costs contributed from the newly-opened
supermarkets.

BEEENWE D

REHEBNHEMBAREE RN =R

20134 - KEHEFHEMPAENEAR
K517 B &L (20124F « ARB4A39EHETT)
I EMSHIABER H L H2012F 14.5%
EINZE2013F £74.6% °
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ez « AR REMAD A Mt EKA)
H2012F E /M A REEQ48H B LiE INE2013
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7T5TEE LB INE2013FEMARKI7T4EHE
TC c IRFER15.5% o IREHE S REATE
MEDA B EEBLE R ZE10.3% (2012
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D ELET AT E AL R T EE5.7%  B120124F
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRE D

Other Income and Gains (excluding Fee Income from
Suppliers)

This mainly comprised interest income and gains from
the Group’s surplus cash, including structured deposits,
which forms part of the Group’s treasury functions.

Finance Costs

Finance costs included interest expenses on bank
borrowings, which increased to RMB56 million in 2013.
The increase was due to the increase of short-term
financing notes and bank borrowings. Interest expenses of
RMB29 million (2012: RMB9 million) has been capitalized
as property under development.

Profit before tax
In line with the increase in operating profit, profit before
tax increased 12.3% to RMB1,035 million in 2013.

Income Tax Expenses

This mainly comprised PRC corporate income tax and a
5% withholding tax provided for the anticipated dividend
distribution to the Company by its subsidiaries established
in the PRC. The effective tax rate for 2013 kept at 28.8%
(2012: 28.8%).

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent

Profit attributable to owners of the parent company
increased to approximately RMB730 million for 2013
(2012: RMB651 million), representing year-on-year growth
of approximately 12.1%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets EMEBEE
- Property, plant and equipment —-ME - BEREE
— Prepaid land premiums — BT ES
— Long-term prepayments — KRB FRIE
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE

Listed shares ik,
Cash and cash equivalents, ReMREeEEY -

long-term time deposits
at bank, restricted cash
and structured deposits

Total assets BEBE

Short-term financing notes and 5 HIELE 5 A
Interest-bearing bank borrowings* 5T B R 1T &R

Equity attributable to shareholders 5% B I B4 25

Property, Plant and Equipment, Prepaid Land
Premium and Long-term Prepayments

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid land premium
and long term prepayments amounted to approximately
RMB7,213 million (2012: RMB6,861 million) were assets
which are held for the long-term, for the use in operation.

Capital expenditure of the Group during 2013 amounted
to approximately RMB678 million (2012: RMB2,121
million). The amount represented contractual payments
made for the acquisition of land use rights, buildings and
construction of greenfield projects and store expansion.

Capital commitment as of 31 December 2013 amounted
to RMB1,064 million (2012: RMB540 million), representing
mainly capital works and construction at Yixing, Jiaxing
and Anqging shopping malls.

*

including current and non-current portions

BERYMIEREBDED

BEEENWE D

Bt #& AR R
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

FRIITHORAEHRFR
XREEESMEBLETX

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F

(RMB million)

(AR¥BEERT)

6,132 5,805
899 890
182 166
146 109

3,455 2,249

12,132 10,382

2,864 1,448

4,796 4,478

ME -BEERRE A1 HEZESRES
EARIE

W BMERZRH EANIHESEEH
BN RIBRELHARE?7 2138 & 7T (2012
F: AR¥6,86188L) L BEENDRBR
B UIEREEFR -

AEER01BFRNERAATNHBARE
678E BT (2012%F : ARME2121HETT) °
BAMTENEEHBERESMKEN LTI
FRE THEREFRFEEEMNAONERK
FTER »

MR2013F12A31H » REBMEREERA
R#1,0645 87T (20124F : AR¥S5408H &
L) EFFEREE  RH - REMNEAM
BYHRLOER-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRE D

Investment in Listed Shares

The Group currently owned 5.59% minority interests in
Wuxi Commercial Building Dadongfang Co., Ltd. (%5
EMERNERARFEMHERAT]), a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Cash and cash equivalents, long-term time deposits
at banks, restricted cash and structured deposits
The amounts included structured deposits in licensed
banks in the PRC. These structured deposits have terms
of less than one year and have expected annual rates of
return up to 6.3%. Pursuant to the underlying contracts or
notices, these structured deposits are capital guaranteed
upon the maturity date.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for
varying periods of between three months and five years
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term
time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Restricted cash represents balances deposited in the
Group’s desiganted accounts as required by the Ministry
of Commerce of the People’s Republic of China. The
Group is required to deposit no less than 30% of the
balance of advances from customers for sales of prepaid
cards.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCING

Funding Model

The Group has been careful in using debt gearing to
expand our business in accordance with our business
strategy. At 31 December 2013, the Group’s gearing ratio
stayed at 37% (2012: 36%). The gearing ratio is calculated
by net debt (including bank borrowings, short-term
financing notes, trade payables and other payables and
accruals minus structured deposits, restricted cash,
long-term time deposits at bank and cash and cash
equivalents) divided by the capital plus net debt of the
Group.

Over the past two years, we have actively diversified our
funding sources, maintained strong long-term relations
with lenders and investors and have spread out maturities
to reduce refinancing risk. In March 2013, the Group
issued first tranche of short-term financing notes of
RMB900 million with interest rate of 4.59%. The notes are
issued to institutional investors in the National Interbank
Bond Market.

Liquidity, Cash and Borrowings

The Group has always pursued a prudent treasury
management policy and is in a strong liquidity position
with sufficient standby banking facilities to cope with daily
operations and future development demands for capital.
The Group relied principally on cash flow generated from
its operating activities as a primary source of liquidity. In
order to take advantage of interest rate spreads among
different currencies, the Group borrowed bank loans
mainly denominated in US$ and HKS$.

As at 31 December 2013, the equity attributable to
owners of the parent amounted to RMB4,796 million,
representing an increase of RMB318 million from
31 December 2012. During the year, the Company
repurchased approximately 2.1 million shares for a total
consideration (including expenses) of approximately
HK$8.2 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRE D

The Group maintained a strong cash position. Cash
and cash equivalents, long-term time deposits at bank,
restricted deposits and structured deposits total stood
at approximately RMB3,455 million (2012: RMB2,249
million), whereas the Group had short-term bank loans
and short-term financing notes of total RMB1,872 million
(2012: RMB794 million).

Total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2013
amounted to approximately RMB12,132 million
(2012: RMB10,382 million), whereas total liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB7,106 million
(2012: RMB5,671 million), resulting in a net assets
position of RMB5,026 million (2012: RMB4,711 million).

Foreign Exchange and Interest Rate Exposure

The Group conducted its business operations in the PRC
and its revenues and expenses were denominated in
RMB. Therefore, except for the capital market transactions
for funding needs, there is limited exposure in foreign
exchange risk. Certain of the Group’s bank balances,
bank borrowings and deposits were denominated in HK$
or US$ which exposed the Group to foreign exchange
risks attributable to fluctuations in exchange rates
between HK$/US$ and RMB.

As at 31 December 2013, the Directors considered the
Group’s foreign exchange risk to be insignificant. For the
year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded net
foreign exchange gains of approximately RMB26 million
(2012: RMB2 million).

Details of the exposure of the Group on interest rate and

exchange rate fluctuations are set out in note 46 to the
financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
ANALYSIS

The following is the key financial ratios used to interpret
the financial performance and position of a company. The
indicators tell how a company is performing and assess a

company’s financial health.

Return on Equity

RMB'M
(AR¥ : B&RX)
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Average Shareholders’ Equity 0 Return on Equity
R R R T HE FEEREE

Operating Margins
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= Opgflting Profit for the Group Operating Margin (in term of TSP)
RN MEEETFIR (EEFEREREE )

BEEENWE D

RBEREDN

A0 AR AN 2 B B 7 R 4B MR Y A 5 B
B X - BERERER -—RARNEEL
1t~ BB B 75 4 BRR L -

FEEWRE
Net Income
Return on Equity FHIE
FEEWHEEX Average Shareholders’ Equity
RREZTHE

Return on equity demonstrates how
effectively a company at generating profits
from every unit of shareholders’ equity. The
return on equity ratio measures how much
the shareholders earned for their investment
in the company.

FEEWRA XA NRBRARKE —DBIRE
SmPAENBMRE - FEENSRAHE
BRUERETESTZ O -

AE R F R 0w FF
Operating profit
Operating Margin pig,‘ﬂé&;ﬁ%%
(interm of TSP) = - T
TR e
= HEFMEHELE

Operating margins gives an idea of how
much a company makes on each dollar of
sales and it reflects a company’s operating
efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Net asset value per share
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SFRFLE
Equity attributable to
Net assel val owners of the parent
et asset value BAREAARBES
POTSRAIE = T mber of Issued Shares
SRIEE umber of Issue I
at the end of year
ERBETROE

It refers to the book value of the share.

BERFEERESROE@ERE -

BEEEGBHE
Net Debt
Gearing Ratio EEFE
EEAfHE Equity and net debt
ERREBTE

Gearing ratio is a measure of equity and net
debt coverage over net debt.

BEABANRBREEERD MEFFELE
BEENEERE -

FIERERSE
Profit before Income Tax and Interest
Interest Cover Ratio BHAIRT
FSREEE Interest Charges + Capitalised Interest
fBE+EALRF S

The interest cover ratio shows how
comfortably a company’s interest obligations
are serviced by its profit.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Dividend Yield
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BEEENWE D

BRE Wz FE
Dividend per Share
Dividend Yield SREE
hekzaz Closing Share Price

Dividend vyield — effectively the return on the
shareholders’ investments from dividend
income. Dividend yield was between
2.8% to 4.7% in the past years.

BBtk RS EREER ZHEAOLE -
BEZFHRBRERRIFE2.8%E47%Z
A o

R B R X
Yearly Dividends per Share
Dividend Payout FEShRKE
her#Ex Eamings per Share
s

Dividend payout — the proportion of the
company’s earning which is distributed to
shareholders as dividends. After the Company
was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on October
2010, we have declared and paid out interim
and final dividends of the prior year in each
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWRE D

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities. Bank loans of RMB15,000,000 of the
Group as at 31 December 2012 are secured by the pledge
of certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
with an aggregate net book value of RMB427,224,000.
Details are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Enhancing Staff Capabilities

We endeavor to provide employees with a stimulating
and harmonious working environment. We also advocate
lifelong learning, offer training and development prospects
to broaden their outlook, improve the standard of our
employees, support their personal growth and offer
promotion opportunities. The Group provided additional
support on staff training to enhance their performance in
their current roles or prepare them for further advancement.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed a total of
approximately 8,612 full-time employees, of which 3,502
served the department store business and of which 4,946
served the supermarket business (2012: 7,800 full-time
employee, of which 3,320 served the department store
business and 4,303 served the supermarket business).
Employees included management, sales people, workers
for the logistics support system and other supporting staff.

The Group’s remuneration policy is primarily based on
the duties, performance and length of service of each
individual employee with reference to prevailing market
conditions and is reviewed every year. To attract and
retain skilled and experienced personnel and to motivate
them to strive for future development and expansion
of our business, the Group also offers a share option
scheme. which was adopted pursuant to the shareholders’
resolutions passed on 30 september 2010. As at
31 December 2013, no share option was granted by the
Group under the share option scheme.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SOCIAL OBLIGATION

The Group upholds the values of social obligation and
places emphasis on customer service, employee benefits.
The Group has established a Mutual Assistance Fund to
protect and assist employee facing difficulties. The Group
promotes the use of environmental-friendly materials and
adopts measures to save energy in the stores, to promote
a wareness of environment protection. In 2013, the Group
promoted a number of environmental and energy-saving
measures to improve the energy efficiency in the stores.
The stores also launched a series of environmental care
program including exhibition, cycling race around Taihu
Lake, plant tree activities, recycle of battery, secondhand
merchandise fair, to construct a better social.

In addition to carry out various environmental and social
welfare activities the Group also focused on enhancing
harmonious labor relation, remuneration system and
personal growth and development for employees. steadily
increase employee’s salaries, personal development and
measures. On April 2013, the Group was awarded as “2012
Best Employer” in Wuxi, China.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEAER

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Jiangiang (FRZ )

aged 56 (Appointed on 23 June 2006)

Mr. Chen, the founder of the Group and Chairman of
the Company, is responsible for the overall corporate
strategies planning, business development and investment
of the Group. Since his joining of the Group in 1996,
Mr. Chen has been engaging in retail business and has
over 18 years of experience in managing department
stores and retail businesses. Mr. Chen has been actively
participating in the management and development of the
Group’s business since its incorporation in 1996. He holds
an Executive Master’s degree in Business Administration
from China Europe International Business School.
Mr. Chen became the chairman of honors of the World
Chinese Traders General Association (Hong Kong) Ltd.
(BEAEEERESHFAEE) in 2002. Mr. Chen is also a
director and the sole shareholder of Octopus Holdings
Foundation, the controlling shareholder and an associated
corporation of the Company.

Mr. Tao Qingrong (FE %)

aged 53 (Appointed on 23 June 2006)

Mr. Tao has been the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
since January 2011 and is primarily responsible for the
day-to-day management of business and operation of
the Group. Mr. Tao joined the Group in October 2002 as
general manager of /8 1> %1% & FR A 7] (Shanghali
Springland Enterprise Investment Co., Ltd) (“Shanghai
Springland”) and later was appointed as general manager
of the department store unit of the Group. Mr. Tao is
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Tao worked for /&% 2B A 7
(Shanghai Soap Co., Ltd.) as sales and marketing director
from 1997 to 2000, and LF/&HIB (KE) EmEERR
A \] (Shanghai Soap (Group) Product Sales Co., Ltd.)
as general manager from 2000 to 2002. Mr. Tao holds
a Master’s degree in system engineering from & #
BT (the Shanghai Institute of Mechanical Technology)
(later known as University of Shanghai for Science
and Technology) and an Executive Master’s degree in
Business Administration from China Europe International
Business School. Mr. Tao is interested in approximately
38.46% of the shareholding of Celestial Spring Limited,
being a shareholder holding approximately 1.14% of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Yaoming (8132 8f)

aged 44 (Appointed on 23 May 2011)

Mr. Yu joined the Group in 2007 as a financial director
and was appointed as vice president of our Group in May
2011. Mr. Yu is primarily responsible for the accounting
and financial reporting of the Group. Mr. Yu is a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group and he has over
20 years of experience in finance and accounting and
is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yu worked
as an accounting manager of H/EERAHIETHREMT
A A] (Shanghai SECCO Petrochemical Company Limited)
from 2001 to 2007. Mr. Yu also worked as a deputy
director of the finance department of A1t _F/&& 1L T2
A 7A] (SINOPEC Shanghai Jinshan Engineering Co., Ltd.)
from 1999 to 2001 and worked in relevant units under™
BEA{ LERBICIRNABRAT (SINOPEC Shanghai
Petrochemical Company Limited) from 1992 to 1999.
Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John (5 Ef)

aged 46 (Appointed on 19 July 2010)

Mr. Fung is members of the nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Fung is
currently the Managing Director of Global Link (CHINA)
Company Limited, a company engaged in supply of TV
media programmes. He had previously worked as a senior
manager of the North Asia division of ESPN ASIA Ltd.,
a diversified sports, entertainment and media company
from 1995 to 1997. Mr. Fung holds a Bachelor of Science
degree from Cornell University in Ithaca, New York.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEAER

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lin Zhijun (&£ E)

aged 59 (Appointed on 17 February 2008)

Dr. Lin is the Chairman of the audit committee and
members of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company. Dr. Lin is a Professor and
Head of the Department of Accountancy and Law in Hong
Kong Baptist University. Dr. Lin holds a Master of Science
degree in Accounting from University of Saskatchewan
in Canada and a Ph.D degree in Economics (Accounting)
from Xiamen University. Dr. Lin has previously taught
in Xiamen University, worked as a Visiting Professor in
the University of Hong Kong and Tenured Professor in
the Faculty of Management of Lethbridge University in
Canada. Dr. Lin worked at an international accounting
firm, Touche Ross & Co. Canada (now known as
“Deloitte & Touche”) in Toronto from 1982 to 19883.
Dr. Lin is also a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Australian Institute
of Certified Management Accountants. He is a member
of various educational accounting associations including
the American Accounting Association, the International
Association for Accounting Education and Research and
the Hong Kong Association for Accounting Education. He
is also an independent director of China Everbright Limited
(stock code: 00165.HK), Sinotruk (Hong Kong) Limited
(stock code: 03808.HK) and Zhengzhou Coal Mining
Machinery Group Company Limited (stock code: 00564.
HK), all of which are companies listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. Zhang Weijiong (3R % /)

aged 61 (Appointed on 17 February 2008)

Dr. Zhang is the Chairmen of the nomination committee
and remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Dr. Zhang is currently serves
as professor of Science of Strategy, director of EMBA
program, president (Chinese affairs), co-dean and the
director of the Centre of Chinese Private Enterprises in
China Europe International Business School and joined
China Europe International Business School in 1997.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in power mechanical
engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong University
and Master’'s and Doctorate’s degrees in business
administration from University of British Columbia in
Canada. Dr. Zhang was associate dean and associate
professor at the Management School of Shanghai Jiao
Tong University. He is currently an independent director
of Huayu Automotive Systems Co., Ltd (FEE/ZERL
AR AR, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600741) and an independent
non-executive director of Shanghai Fosun Pharmaceutical
(Group) Co., Ltd, a company dual listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock codes: 600196
and 02196.HK).

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming (38 —§)

aged 45 (Appointed on 11 March 2014)

Mr. Cheung is the members of the audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee.
Mr. Cheung is currently an executive director, chief
executive officer and responsible officer of New Century
Asset Management Limited, a REIT manager of New
Century Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code: 01275),
a REIT listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Cheung holds a bachelor
degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Cheung has been a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since 1995 and a chartered accountant
under the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales since 2007. Mr. Cheung has extensive
experience in the fields of investment, real estate and
property market research, corporate finance and auditing.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEAER

Mr. Cheung was a staff accountant and semi-senior
accountant at Arthur Andersen & Co. in Hong Kong and
China from August 1991 to August 1994. In September
1994, Mr. Cheung joined Citibank (now named Citigroup)
as an accountant and administration manager and held
the position of assistant vice president from September
1996. In October 1997, he started working in Salomon
Smith Barney (now named Citigroup) as an equity
research analyst. In May 1999, Mr. Cheung left Salomon
Smith Barney to join Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette
where he worked until November 2000. He joined HSBC
Securities (Asia) Limited as the head of Hong Kong and
China property research in November 2000 where he
worked until April 2005. Mr. Cheung joined Cohen &
Steers Asia Limited in 2005 as a senior vice president and
executive director, supervising its Asia Pacific real estate
investment and research functions until February 2009.
Mr. Cheung joined DBS Vickers (Hong Kong) Limited as
the head of research in June 2009. Since August 2011,
Mr. Cheung has been the chief investment officer of
Neutron INV Partners Limited and has been involved in
work such as exploring new investment opportunities,
setting up the Neutron Greater China Equity Fund and
marketing to local and overseas institutional investors,
consultants, distribution intermediaries. Further, in 2010,
Mr. Cheung received the Outstanding Chinese Business
Leader Award from the HongQi and China Report.

Saved as disclosed, the Directors have not held any
directorship in other listed public companies currently and
in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Xu Zhigiang (#%58), aged 39, has been a vice
president of the Group since December 2013. He is
primarily responsible for the operation and management
of the department store business of the Group. Mr. Xu
has over 18 years of experience in retail sales since his
joining the Group in 1996. Mr. Xu holds a Bachelor’s
degree in international trade from EE 2% (Chongging
School of Commerce) and a Master’s degree in business
administration from Guanghua School of Management of
Peiking University.

Mr. Zhu Tao (%7H), aged 43, has been a vice president
of the Group since December 2013 and he is responsible
for assets management, store opening, business
expansion and logistic support of the Group. Mr. Zhu
joined the Group in 1996 and has previously taken up
various positions in the Group. Mr. Zhu has over 18 years
of experience in department store and retail businesses.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhu worked for B &H
% (Yixing Wine Factory). Mr. Zhu obtained a diploma in
food processing from _E/&/KEKE (Shanghai Fisheries
University) (later known as Shanghai Ocean University)
in 1991. Mr. Zhu is a director of and is interested in
approximately 30.77% of the shareholding of Celestial
Spring Limited, being a shareholder holding approximately
1.14% interest in the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Hon Yin Wah, Eva (%# %), HKICPA, FCCA, aged
43, joined the Group in August 2010 as the Company
Secretary of the Company. Ms. Hon holds a Bachelor
of business administration degree in accounting from
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology.
Ms. Hon is a certified public accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA)
and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA). She has over 18 years of experience
in accounting and financial management and corporate
governance. Prior to joining the Group, she was an audit
manager at PricewaterhouseCoopers and senior executive
of companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited or Nasdaqg Stock Market.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

TRERHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board of Directors and management are committed
to compliance of statutory and regulatory corporate
governance standards and adherence to the principles
of corporate governance emphasizing transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibility and fairness.
The Board reviews the corporate governance practices
from time to time to ensure alignment of interests and
expectations from our shareholders, the public investors
and the other stakeholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practice
(the “Corporate Governance Code”) under Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended
31 December 2013. No incident of non-compliance by
Directors was noted by the Company in 2013.

Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules provides that every board
of directors of listed issuers must include at least three
independent non-executive directors. Moreover, Rule 3.21
of the Listing Rules provides that the audit committee of a
listed issuer must comprise a minimum of three members.
Subsequent to resignation of independent non-executive
Director of the Company by Mr. Wang Shuaiting on
17 January 2014, the Company has two Independent
Non-executive Directors and two audit committee
members, the number of independent non-executive
directors fell below the minimum number as required
under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, and the number of
the audit committee members also fell below the minimum
number as required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
Further, the number of independent non-executive director
falls below one-third of the Board members as required
under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

On 11 March 2014, the Board appointed Mr. Cheung
Yat Ming as an independent non-executive Director
and members of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. Following Mr. Cheung appointment, the
Company has fully complied with the requirements of
Rules 3.10(A), 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

THE BOARD

Board Composition

As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises three
executive Directors and four non-executive Directors.
Three of the non-executive Directors are independent
and from different business and professional fields. The
Independent Non-executive Directors represent more than
one-third of the Board. Directors have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
delivery of the Board functions. Details of the Directors
and relevant relationships amongst each other are set
out in “Director and Senior Management” section in this
Report.

Roles and Responsibility of the Board

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of
corporate governance and is ultimately accountable
for the Group’s activities, strategies and financial
performance. The Board has established various
committees to manage and oversee the specified affairs
of the Group. Certain important matters involving finance
and shareholders’ interest are reserved for approval by
the Board, including annual budget, initial announcement
on interim and final result, dividends, major investment,
equity-related capital market operations, mergers and
acquisition and disposal, major connected transactions,
annual internal control evaluation and appointment
of Director(s) following the recommendation(s) by the
Remuneration and Nomination Committees. The Board
has to make decision objectively in the best interest of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The role of the Chairman is separate from that of the
Chief Executive Officer. This is to enhance their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility. The
roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer have
been clearly defined. Mr. Chen Jiangiang acting as the
Chairman is responsible for providing leadership in the
Board to set strategies to achieve the Group’s goals.
Mr. Tao Qingrong, the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for managing the business of the Group and
leading the management team to implement strategies
and objectives adopted by the Board.
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TRERHRS

Board and Committee Meetings

Meetings of the Board are held regularly and at least four
times a year at about quarterly intervals. The Directors
can attend meeting in person or through other electronic
means of communication. During the year ended
31 December 2013, the Board met four times and
discussed matters relating to the re-election of Directors,
discussed and approved the overall business strategies,
reviewed and monitored the financial and operation
performance of the Group and approved the annual
budget for the Group. Notice and board papers were
given to all Directors prior to the meetings in accordance
with the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance
Code. A representative of the external auditor attended
the Company’s 2013 Annual General Meeting to answer
questions from the shareholders on the audit of the
Company.

The attendance record of each Director for the meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out
as follows:
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Meetings Attended/Held
HERY/ BRERRY
Annual
Board Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Name of Director Meeting Committee = Committee =~ Committee Meeting
EEpg Exe EBNZEEE $FMEEE REEEE RRAFXE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chen Jiangiang (Chairman) s (e 4/4 1
Mr. Tao Qingrong WER(7THEH) 4/4 1
(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fung Hiu Lai BER 4/4 0
(resigned on 11 March 2014) (R2014F3A11BER)
Mr. Yu Yaoming I 4/4 0
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. Wang Lin B 2/4 1/2 11 0
(resigned on 25 October 2013) (201310 425 B B {T)
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John BB 4/4 2/2 11 1
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTES
Dr. Lin Zhijun HEE 4/4 4/4 2/2 il 1
Dr. Zhang Weijiong o 4 4/4 4/4 2/2 1/1 0
Mr. Wang Shuaiting TanE 2/4 1/4 1/2 11 0
(resigned on 17 January 2014) (FA2014F1 B17HBEE)
Mr. Cheung Yat Ming K8 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
(appointed on 11 March 2014) (R2014F3A11AEERT)
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Independence of Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Company has received a
written confirmation from each Independent Non-executive
Director of his independence to the Company. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent with respect to the Company.

Board Committees

The Board has established the following committees
(all chaired by Independent Non-executive Director)
with defined terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules:

° Audit Committee
° Remuneration Committee
° Nomination Committee

Each Committee has authority to engage outside
consultants or experts as it considers necessary to
discharge the Committee’s responsibilities. To further
reinforce independence and effectiveness, all Audit
Committee members are Independent Non-executive
Directors, and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committees have been structured with a majority of
Independent Non-executive Directors as members. Details
of the Committees are set out below.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board of
Directors and has three members, all of whom are
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Chairman,
Dr. Lin Zhijun has appropriate professional qualifications,
including membership of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (AICPA), the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (CICPA) and the Australian
Institute of Certified Management Accountants (CMA)
and experience in financial and accounting matters.
Dr. Zhang Weijong has extensive experience in business
administration Mr. Cheung Yat Ming has extensive
experience on the fields of investment, real estate and
property market research, corporate finance and auditing.
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The Board has given the Audit Committee written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules and paragraph C.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The
terms of reference are set out in the Company’s and
the Stock Exchange’s websites. The Audit Committee
meet regularly, at least four times per annum, as that
full attention can be given to the matters submitted.
The Audit Committee’s primary responsibilities are to
assure that adequate internal controls are in place and
followed; assure that appropriate accounting principles
and reporting practices are followed; satisfy itself as to
the adequate of the scope and direction of external and
internal auditing; and perform the corporate governance
duties and fulfill the functions conferred on the Audit
Committee.

Between 1 January 2013 and the date of this Report
(the “Relevant Period”), the Audit Committee discharged
its responsibilities in its review of the half-yearly and
annual result and system of internal control. The Audit
Committee reviewed the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013, including the Group’s adopted
accounting principles and practices, in conjunction with
the internal and external auditors. The Audit Committee
also reviewed the compliance by the Company with
the Stock Exchange Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2013. The work performed by the Audit
Committee in 2013 included reviews of:

e the 2012 Annual Report including the Corporate
Governance Report, the Directors’ Report, financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
and the annual results announcement, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

e the 2013 Interim Report including the interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June
2013 and the interim results announcement, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

e the audit fees payable to the external auditor for
the year ended 31 December 2012 for approval
by the Board, with a recommendation for their
reappointment for 2013, subject to approval by
shareholders (given on 2 May 2013);
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

e the audit strategy submitted by the external auditor,
Ernst & Young for the year ended 31 December
2013;

e the staffing and resources of the Group’s Internal
Audit department and the Group internal audit review
of 2012 and audit plan for 2013;

° internal control review approach for 2013; and

e the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function.

Remuneration Committee

A majority of the members are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee is chaired by
Dr. Zhang Weijiong with Dr. Lin Zhijun, Mr. Cheung Yat
Ming and Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John as members.

The Board has given the Nomination Committee written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of
the Listing Rules and paragraph B.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code. The terms of reference are set out
in the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.
The Remuneration Committee making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure of
all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and reviewing the special remuneration packages of all
executive Directors. Human Resources Department of the
Group is responsible for collection and administration of
the human resources data and makes recommendations
to the Remuneration Committee for consideration. The
Remuneration Committee consults with the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages. During the Relevant Period,
the Remuneration Committee approved and reviewed
Senior Management’s remuneration, including annual
incentive payment for 2012 and 2013 and annual pay
review for 2013 and 2014 and Non-executive Directors’
fee.
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TRERHRS

Nomination Committee

A majority of the members are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee is chaired by
Dr. Zhang Weijiong with Dr. Lin Zhijun, Mr. Cheung Yat
Ming and Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John as members.

The Board has given the Nomination Committee written
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5
of the Corporate Governance Code. The terms of
reference are set out in the Company’s and the Stock
Exchange’s websites. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for the review of Board structure and
composition, identification and recommendation to
the Board of possible appointees as Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to
appointment or reappointment of Director, succession
planning for Directors and assessing the independence
of the Independent Non-executive Directors. The
work performed by the Nomination Committee during
the Relevant Period included reviewing the current
Board structure and composition and assessing the
independence of all Independent Non-executive Directors.

Delegation to Management

Day-to-day operational responsibilities are specifically
delegated by the Board to executive Director and
management. Major matters include:

e the preparation of annual and interim accounts for
Board approval before public reporting;

e execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board;

° monitoring of operating budgets adopted by the
Board;

° implementation of adequate systems of risk
management and internal control procedures; and

e compliance with relevant statutory requirements,
rules and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of the
Directors

The Company follows a formal, considered and
transparent procedure for the appointment of new
directors. Appointments are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee are then put to the full Board for
decision. Thereafter, all Directors are subject to election
by shareholders at the annual general meeting in their first
year of appointment.

Each of the Non-executive Director of the Company has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company,
for a specific term of not more than three years subject to
re-election. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
until the next following general meeting or the next annual
general meeting of the Company respectively and shall
then be eligible for re-election at the meeting. In addition,
all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
every three years and one-third (or the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) of Directors shall retire
from office every year at the Company’s annual general
meeting.

Directors’ Commitments

The Company has received confirmation from each
Director that he has given sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2013. All the Directors have disclosed to the
Company the number and nature of offices held in Hong
Kong or overseas listed public companies or organizations
and other significant commitments, with the identity of
public companies or organizations. During the year ended
31 December 2013, no Director held directorships in
more than four public companies including the Company.
No executive Directors held any directorship in any other
public companies. Directors are also reminded to notify
the Company Secretary in a timely manner and bi-annually
confirm to the Company Secretary any change of such
information.
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The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills for discharging their duties
and responsibilities as Directors of the Company. All
Directors are required to provide the Company with their
training records on an annual basis. For the year ended
31 December 2013, all Directors have confirmed that they
have attended the training sessions by reading regulatory
updates or attending briefings/seminars/conferences
relevant to the business or directors’ duties.

The Board is provided with monthly management updates
which contain year-to-date financials and highlight of key
matters of the Group. The management updates gives
a balanced and understandable assessment in sufficient
detail to assess the performance, position and prospects
of the Group.

Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability
Insurance since 2012 to indemnify its Directors for their
liabilities arising out of corporate management activities.
The Company reviewed the insurance coverage on an
annual basis.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
ACCOUNTS

Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company. Directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going-concern. The
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013 are prepared on a going-concern basis. All the
new accounting standards and policies adopted by the
Company have been thoroughly discussed and approved
at the Audit Committee before adoption by the Board.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Company’s internal
control system and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Group’s internal control system including a defined
management structure with limits of authority is designed
to help the achievement of business objectives, safeguard
assets against unauthorised use or disposal, ensure
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use
or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulations. The system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Group’s Internal Audit department and management
conducts reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system. The annual internal audit plan,
which is approved by the Audit Committee, is based on
a risk assessment methodology. The Audit committee
reviews the findings and opinion of Group Internal Audit
and management on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control system and reports to the Board on such
reviews.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board,
through the Audit Committee, have conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group. In respect of the year ended 31 December 2013,
the Board considered the internal control system effective
and adequate. No significant areas of concern which
might affect shareholders were identified.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Ernst & Young were reappointed independent auditor of
the Company at the last 2013 Annual General Meeting.
Ernst & Young has written to the Audit Committee
confirming that they are independent and that there is no
relationship between Ernst & Young and the Company
which may reasonably be thought to bear on their
independence. In order to maintain their independence,
Ernst & Young will not be employed for any non-audit
work by the Company unless the non-audit work meets
the criteria suggested in the Listing Rules and has been
pre-approved by the Audit Committee. Audit Committee
reviewed Ernst & Young’s performance during 2013
and satisfied itself of their continuing independence and
objectivity within the context of applicable regulatory
requirements and professional standards, the committee
has recommended to the Board the reappointment of
Ernst & Young as independent auditor at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. A resolution to that effect has
been included in the notice of Annual General Meeting.

During the year, the total remuneration in respect of
statutory audit services amounted to RMB2.7 million
(2012: RMB2.7 million), of which a sum of RMB2.5 million
(2012: RMB2.3 million) was paid to Ernst & Young. Ernst
& Young has not provided any non-audit work for the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect of
the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2013 are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” of the Report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
OF THE LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Directors are reminded of their obligations
under the Model Code on a regular basis. Specific
confirmation has been obtained from each Director to
confirm compliance with the required standards set out in
the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2013.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and is appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary
is responsible for facilitating the procedure/activities
of the Board and the Board Committees and good
communication flow among the Board members,
shareholders and senior management. The appointment
and removal of the Company Secretary is subject to Board
approval. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and is accountable to the
Board for matters relating to the duties of the Directors,
such as by giving advice on corporate governance
developments. All members of the Board have access to
the advice and service of the Company Secretary.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company is published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. There was no change to the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

TRERHRS

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general
meetings of the Company. Pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company, shareholders holding not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company,
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company may call for an extraordinary general meeting
and put forward agenda items by sending a written
request to the Company Secretary at the Company
principal place of business in Hong Kong or head office in
the PRC.

Under Article 85 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, if a shareholder wishes to propose a person
other than a retiring Director for election as a Director
at a general meeting, the shareholder should deposit a
written notice of nomination which shall be given to the
Company within the seven days period commencing the
day after the dispatch of the notice of the meeting (or such
other period as may be determined and announced by
the Directors from time to time) and in no event ending no
later than seven days prior to the date appointed for such
meeting. The procedures for shareholders to propose
a person for election as a director are posted on the
Company’s website.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company continues to enhance communications
and relationships with its shareholders and investment
community through various channels including annual
general meetings and analysts briefings on the Company’s
interim and annual results. Management attends investor
meetings on a regular basis and has participated in a
number of investor conferences. The Directors and senior
management answer questions raised by the shareholders
and investors on the performance and development of the
Group.

We maintain a corporate website (www.springlandgroup.
com.cn) to keep our shareholders and the public investors
posted of our share price information, latest business
developments, final and interim results announcements,
financial reports, public announcements, corporate
governance policies and practices, and other relevant
shareholder information.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Springland International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 21 June 2006. The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) principally
engages in the operation of department stores and
supermarkets in the PRC. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year. The activities of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 43 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 39(a) to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 and the state of the affairs of the Company and the
Group as at 31 December 2013 are set out on pages 67
to 179 of this Report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2013 of HK$8.5 cents
in cash per ordinary share to the shareholders appeared
on the register of members of the Company on 15 May
2014. During the year, interim dividend of HK$10 cents
was paid. This recommendation has been incorporated in
the financial statements as a separate allocation within the
equity section of the statement of financial position.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and of the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 71
of this Report and note 39(e) to the financial statements
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Cayman Companies Law, the Company may
pay dividends out of profit or its share premium account
of the Company in accordance with the provisions of
the Company’s Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be able to
pay its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

As of 31 December 2013, the Company’s share premium
available for distribution amounted to RMB1,779 million,
of which RMB167 million has been proposed as a final
dividend for the year. Details of which are set out in note
39(e) in the financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to RMB1 million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2013
amounted to RMB1,933 million, details of which are set
out in note 33 to the financial statements.

COMMITMENTS

Details of the commitments of the Group are set out in
note 38 to the financial statements.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published financial results and financial
position of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out
on page 180. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of the
Cayman Islands pursuant to which the Company shall
be obliged to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2013, pursuant to the
general mandate given to the Directors of the Company,
the Company repurchased a total of 2,104,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company on the Stock
Exchange and all the repurchased shares were cancelled
during the year. The number of issued shares of the
Company as of 31 December 2013 was 2,497,896,000
shares. Particulars of the shares repurchased during the
year are as follows:
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Subsequent to 31 December 2013 and up to the
date of this Report, the Company repurchased a total
of 8,086,000 shares at an aggregate consideration
of HK$31,621,000. These repurchased shares were
cancelled on 3 March 2014. The number of issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this Report is
2,489,810,000.

The Directors consider that the repurchases of shares
will enhance shareholder value in the long term. Save
as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased or sold and the Company did not
redeem any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2013.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) pursuant to the resolutions of the Company
passed on 30 September 2010. The Scheme will remain in
force until 29 September 2020.

The purpose of the Scheme is to attract, retain and
motivate talented participants, to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group. The Scheme
shall be an incentive to encourage the participants to
perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group and
allow the participants to enjoy the results of the Company
attained through their efforts and contributions. The
Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer any employee,
management member or Director of the Company, or any
member of the Group, and third party service providers
options to subscribe for shares on the terms set out in the
Scheme. The amount payable on acceptance of an option
is HK$1.00.

The maximum number of shares which options may be
granted under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
the number of shares that shall represent 10% of issued
share capital of the Company (i.e. 250,000,000 shares) as
at the Listing Date. The limited on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not
exceed such number of shares as shall represent 30% of
the shares issued by the Company from time to time.

Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders in
general meeting, the Board shall not grant options to any
person if the acceptance of those options would result
in the total number of shares issued and to be issued to
that person on exercise of his/her options including both
exercised and outstanding options during any 12-month
period exceeding 1% of the total shares then in issue.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme at any time during the period to be
notified by the Board to the grantee save that such period
shall not be more than 10 years from the business day
on which the option is deemed to have been granted in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme. There is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised.

The price per share at which a grantee may subscribe
for shares upon exercise of an option shall, be a price
determined by the Board but in any event shall be at
least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on
the offer date; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

Since the date of adoption of the Scheme and up to the
date of this Report, no options have been granted under
the Scheme by the Company.

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND THE
REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

All the five highest paid individuals of the Group during
the year were the Directors and the senior management
members of the Group. Details of the Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in notes 11 and 12
respectively of the financial statements. The remuneration
of the senior management whose profiles are included
in the Directors and Senior Management section of this
Report fell within the following bands:

B = &8 =

Remuneration band

Nil to RMB1,000,000 ZEARE—BET
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group’s remuneration policy is primarily based
on duties, performance and length of service of each
individual employee with reference to the prevailing market
conditions.

The Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments are
determined by the Remuneration Committee, with
reference to their duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group and comparable market
statistics, including the prevailing market rate for
executives of similar position.

RETIREMENT FUND SCHEMES

The Group’s employees in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes administered and
operated by the relevant PRC municipal governments.
The Group’s relevant PRC subsidiaries contribute funds
to the retirement schemes to fund the retirement benefits
of the employees which are calculated based on certain
percentage of the average employee salary as stipulated
by the local municipal government. Such retirement
schemes are responsible for the entire post-retirement
benefit obligations payable to the retired employees.
The Group has no further obligations for the actual
payment of post-retirement benefits beyond the aforesaid
contributions.

The Group’s contributions to retirement benefit schemes
were charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2013 were RMB56
million. Details of the contribution retirement schemes are
set out in note 10 of the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Since the Group engages in retail business, for the year
ended 31 December 2013, none of its customers or
suppliers accounted for more than 5% of the Group’s
revenue or purchases. In addition, for the year ended
31 December 2013, none of the Directors, shareholders or
their respective associates who owned 5% or more of the
Company’s issued share capital as at 31 December 2013
had any interest in any of the five largest customers and
the five largest suppliers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during 2013 and up to the
date of this Report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Jiangiang (Chairman)

Mr. Tao Qingrong (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Fung Hiu Lai (resigned on 11 March 2014)
Mr. Yu Yaoming

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wang Lin (resigned on 25 October 2013)
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lin Zhijun

Dr. Zhang WEeijiong

Mr. Wang Shuaiting (resigned on 17 January 2014)
Mr. Cheung Yat Ming (appointed on 11 March 2014)

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, two of the Directors, namely, Mr. Yu
Yaoming and Dr. Lin Zhijun shall retire by rotation and
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Pursuant to Articles
83(3) of the Articles of Association of the Company.
Mr. Cheung Yat Ming, who was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director to fill a casual
vacancy to the Board on 11 March 2014, will hold office
until the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this
Report.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEEHE

)
RABR2013FE R ABERIE2ESRWNT ¢

HITES

BRIE® A (EFE)

PR LR A (FTBAE L)

IEREER S 4 (R20144F3 411 HEE(F)
BZER L E

EHITES
T JRE4 (R2013FE10H25H BE(F)
BB TR A A

BAUFHITES

MEEFLT

IR 1S 4

FENE S 4 (R2014F1 17 HBE(F)
R—IBSE A (R201443 711 HEZ F)

RRBANTMEBERFSME Ep —UESE
BIZEALLE MEEBLENBBEITHR
HBFRE LHRFET WHFTALERBEE
BIEET o RIBADN A AL ZTEE83Q)E
R—IBEAEN2014FE3A 1B EZ T AER
EEEHRBEHRBIIERTESE  THE
MERTHREAFARE  THEEKEER
EIEE o

EEREREBAEEE

ARAEERAGESREEABNEER
EHBHERAREEERSREEAR]—
B o

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE b BIBR AR B IR A T



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr. Wang Lin ceased to hold the position of a
non-Executive Director of the Company and members of
the remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Board with effect from 25 October 2013.

Mr. Wang Shuaiting ceased to hold the position of an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company and
members of the audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Board with effect from
17 January 2014.

Mr. Fung Hiu Lai ceased to hold the position of an
Executive Director of the Company with effect from
11 March 2014.

Mr. Cheung Yat Ming appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company and members
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Board with effect from
11 March 2014.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters that
need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No director or controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries or any company controlled by a director or
controlling shareholder had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the Company’s
holding company was a party during the year ended
31 December 2013.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2013
were rights to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouses or minor children,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or its holding company or subsidiary or a
subsidiary of the Company’s holding company was a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other corporate.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFQ)) or as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO) or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange were as
follows:

(1) Long position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations
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Note:

(@ 17,750,000 Shares were held by Shanghai Victor
Holdings Limited that is wholly-owned by Octopus
(China) Holdings Limited and 1,424,750,000 Shares
were held by Octopus (China) Holdings Limited,
in which is wholly owned by Octopus Holdings
Foundation. Mr. Chen as the sole shareholder of
Octopus Holdings Foundation is deemed to be
interested in 1,442,500,000 Shares held by Octopus
(China) Holdings Limited and Shanghai Victor Holdings
Limited. As each of Octopus Holdings Foundation,
Octopus (China) Holdings Limited and Shanghai Victor
Holdings Limited are all holding companies of the
Company, each of them is an associated corporation
of the Company under the SFO.

(2) Short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations
As at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors and
Chief Executive of the Company had any interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013, so far as is known to any
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors or Chief
Executive of the Company, whose interests have been
disclosed in the above section “Interests of Directors
and Chief Executive”) had interests of 5% or more in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company notified to
the Company under the provisions of the Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO:
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Long position in the shares and underlying 1. ERANRORHEBEROINEE
shares of the Company
Percentage
of issued
Number of ordinary share capital
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest Shares interested Note HERfT
RREM® BEME FENEBERYE i REWBEDL
Octopus Holdings Foundation Interest in controlled corporation 1,442,500,000 a 57.75%
REF DA ER
Matthews International Capital Investment manager 151,015,000 b 6.05%
Management, LLC RERE
Value Partners Limited Beneficial owner 150,490,000 c 6.02%
EEEREEAT ERHABA
Value Partners Hong Kong Limited Interest in controlled corporation 150,490,000 c 6.02%
EREREREBARRA REH D AN ER
Value Partners Group Limited Interest in controlled corporation 150,490,000 c 6.02%
EESEERAA REH DA ER
Cheah Capital Management Limited Interest in controlled corporation 150,490,000 c 6.02%
REH DA ER
Cheah Company Limited Interest in controlled corporation 150,490,000 c 6.02%
REH AR ER
Hang Seng Bank Trustee International  Trustee of the CH Cheah Family Trust 150,490,000 c 6.02%
Limited CH Cheah Family Trust®) %25 A
BERITETERER LA
Cheak Cheng Hye Founder of a discretionary trust 150,490,000 c 6.02%
#EE RREFOBIMA
To Hau Yiu Interest of spouse 150,490,000 c 6.02%
HIE R BER
Schroders Plc Investment manager 125,681,658 d 5.03%
REKE

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE b BIBR AR B IR A T
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Notes:

(@)

Octopus (China) Holdings Limited is wholly-owned
by Octopus Holdings Foundation. Mr. Chen as the
sole shareholder of Octopus Holdings Foundation is
deemed to be interested in Shares held by Octopus
(China) Holdings Limited and its wholly-owned
subsidiary.

These interests are held by Matthews International
Capital Management, LLC in the capacity of
investment manager.

These Shares are registered in the name of Value
Partners Limited which is indirectly wholly-owned by
Value Partners Group Limited which in turn is held as
to 28.47% by Cheah Capital Management Limited.
The entire issued share capital of Cheah Capital
Management Limited is held by Cheah Company
Limited, whose entire issued share capital is held by
Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited in its
capacity as trustee of The CH Cheah Family Trust with
Cheah Cheng Hye as the founder of the trust. Under
the SFO, Value Partners Hong Kong Limited, Value
Partners Group Limited, Cheah Capital Management
Limited, Cheah Company Limited, Hang Seng Bank
Trustee International Limited, Cheah Cheng Hye and
To Hau Yin (as spouse of Cheah Cheng Hye) are all
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Value
Partners Limited.

These interests are held in the capacity of investment
manager Schroders Plc through its subsidiaries,
namely Schroder Investment Management Limited,
Schroder Investment Management (Singapore) Limited
and Schroder Investment Management (Hong Kong)
Limited held 10,424,000 shares, 9,467,000 shares
and 105,790,658 shares in the Company respectively,
and was accordingly deemed to be interested in
the respective shares held by the aforementioned
companies.

Short position in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had not
been notified of any short positions being held by any
substantial shareholder in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company.
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INTERESTS OF ANY OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had not been
notified of any persons other than the substantial
shareholders who had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying shares of the Company, which are
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital is
held by the public at the date of this Report.

COMPETING INTEREST

As at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors or
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their
respective associates had any interests in the businesses,
other than being a director of the Company and/or
its subsidiaries and their respective associates, which
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group as required to
be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Details of connected transaction during the year ended
31 December 2013 are set out in note 42 to the financial
statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or existed during
the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
section on pages 38 to 50.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to shareholders by reason of their holding of the
shares.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the reporting period
of the Group are set out in note 47 to the financial
statements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by
Ernst & Young. Ernst & Young retires and a resolution for
their re-appointment as the Company’s auditor will be
proposed at the Company’s forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board

Springland International Holdings Limited
Chen Jiangiang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 11 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= K
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Springland International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 67 to 179, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

18 M % B A

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

11 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2013

REVENUE
Other income and gains

Purchase of and changes
in inventories
Staff costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Rental expenses
Other expenses
Finance costs
Share of loss of
a joint venture

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY

EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT

Basic and diluted (RMB)

A
H A WA K gz

BTRA
MEMX
HF X
A& R A

DERELEER

Bk B A1 28 A

TS TR X

FEEF

AT & IHFELN

BRAHEB A
FEIE S

BRARAEEER
BE AR
BRER

EARANEE(ARY)

Details of dividends payable and proposed for the year are
disclosed in note 15 to these financial statements.

HE2013F12 8318 I LFE

2013 2012

—E—=F —E—=F

Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ika ARET T AREFIT
6 4,161,600 3,806,888
7 708,795 566,381
(2,310,047) (2,111,871)
(573,236) (482,678)
(317,375) (254,207)
(80,842) (67,959)
8 (494,124) (489,098)
9 (55,998) (43,550)
22 (3,658) (1,889)
10 1,035,115 922,017
13 (298,542) (265,758)
736,573 656,259

14 730,356 651,285
6,217 4,974

736,573 656,259

16 0.29 0.26

AEEENMEIRERSFH BRI B REN

15 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SeEZHEHRER

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
Other comprehensive income
to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investments:
Changes in fair value
Income tax effect

Exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations

Net other comprehensive income
to be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR,
NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests
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Notes

g3

14

2013 2012
=F-=F —F-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTF T ARBEF T
736,573 656,259
17,039 (18,831)
(4,260) 4,708
12,779 (14,123)
22,064 8,356
34,843 (5,767)
34,843 (6,767)
771,416 650,492
765,199 645,518
6,217 4,974
771,416 650,492




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land premiums

Other intangible assets
Goodwill

Investment in a joint venture
Investment in an associate
Available-for-sale investments
Long-term prepayments
Deferred tax assets

Restricted cash

Long-term time deposits at bank

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade receivables
Prepayments, deposits

and other receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Available-for-sale investments
Structured deposits
Restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets of a disposal group
classified as held for sale

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term financing notes
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Derivative financial instruments
Tax payable

Liabilities directly associated
with the assets classified
as held for sales

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

kRBEE
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Notes

K1t

18
19
20

22
23
24
25
26

31

27
28

29
36

30
31
31

41

32
33
34
35
36

41

e MBARR R

31 December 2013

201312 A31H

2013 2012
—E—=F —ET—-—%F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T AREFIT
6,131,606 5,805,327
899,433 890,023
41,412 44,474
206,494 184,167
257,277 260,935
45,166 -
146,244 108,765
181,725 165,957
49,546 54,918
154,445 -
121,460 -
8,234,808 7,514,566
383,383 314,152
13,026 8,610
283,225 263,915
- 276

14,000 -
1,887,000 710,000
400,000 -
891,923 1,539,313
3,872,557 2,836,266
24,738 30,738
3,897,295 2,867,004
930,353 -
941,268 793,619
1,162,799 1,110,973
2,228,790 2,263,167
- 1,043
78,102 81,153
5,341,312 4,249,955
3,107 3,107
5,344,419 4,253,062
(1,447,124) (1,386,058)
6,787,684 6,128,508
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e M BRI R

31 December 2013

2013%F12A31H
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——%F
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
k=3 AR® TR AREFIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T BERITER 33 992,212 654,500
Long-term payables KEIFEN FOE 37 300,329 291,045
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIBAE 26 469,259 472,327
Total non-current liabilities ERFEEFEER 1,761,800 1,417,872
Net assets BEFE 5,025,884 4,710,636
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners BARERA
of the parent FE 1 R &2
Issued capital BEITRA 39(a) 21,572 21,589
Reserves Gk 4,607,365 4,214,219
Proposed final dividend ¥R B R B B 15 167,235 242,589
4,796,172 4,478,397
Non-controlling interests FERER 229,712 232,239
Total equity TR 5,025,884 4,710,636
Chen Jiangiang Tao Qingrong
BR 22 o P&
Director Director
EF EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERDBER

At January 2012

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year:
Changes in fair value of

avallable for-sale investments,

net of fax

Exchange differences on
ranglation of oreign
operations

Total comprefensive income
for the year

Year ended 31 December 2013

Retecogniton of non-contoling £ 85 86

inferests related to the
put option
Acquisiton of a subsidiary
Capttal injection from

non-controling shareholders

Appropriation to statutory
surplus reseve

Acquisition of non-controling
inferests

Dividends paid to non-controlling 1R 8 P2 RAE

shareholders
Final 2011 dividend declared
Inferim 2012 dividend
Proposed final 2012 dlvicend

Dereoogniton of non-controling 32 %94

interests and recogniton of e~ R REH L

difference between the

derecognised non-controling

Interests and the liabity
of the put options

At 31 December 2012

EZE2013F12A31BIEFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BAAEAARR
Avalable-
for-sale
investment Exchange Proposed
revaluation  Statutory fluctuation finel Non-
Issued Share  Contributed Capltal esene surplus  Discrefionary reseve  Retaned  dividend controling Total
captd pemim supls resene WERE resene  resenve EX  eamings Ri¥ Todl  inferests equiy
BEARE  RORE  EERE  ERRE REEMBE fviEE  BERE  MIRE  RRER  AERS & fihER  EaEE
Notes RMBOO0  RWB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'0O0  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMBIOO0  RMB'OO0  RMBIOOO  RMB'OO0  RWB'OO0  RMB'0O0  RWB'000
Bz ARETR ARETT AREIT ARETR ARETR ARETr ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Note 39(a) Note 39(b) Note 39(c) ~ Note 39(d)
Hitsge) Kisq) e hENy
R01251R18 2589 2308044 (1512 9,763 - Wy R0 (10774 1261680 202675 4,128,980 0914 4150894
FhiEd - - - - - - - - 65128 - 05128 4914 656,259
EREMNREE:
AHHERERTE
%9 fisE
- - - - (1) - - - - - (141 - (141
BERSRNESZE
- - - - - - - 8,336 - - 8,356 - 8,336
ERIEYALE
- - - - (41 - - 836 651,285 - 645518 4914 650492
FERERNERD
- - - - - - - - - - - 0818 28185
KE-BHBAR - - - - - - - - - - - 180318 180313
FARRRNEREA
- - - - - - - - - - - 21,144 1,144
BREERDRS
- - - - - - - () - - - -
WEHARER
- - - %) - - - - - - M) BeY) 6w
_ - R - - - - - - - - (8.299) 8.299)
BEENNEERERE - - - - - - - - - 06T (02875 - 06
NIOEERERS 15 - (iR - - - - - - - - iRy - B
FRE0EERERE - (2589 - - - - - - - 258 - - -
FERE El:
EhEENED
- - - (1 - - - - - - M) @220 s15)
12012512831 21589 1,983,792 (15127 (156 (141237 dpdd0or 33700 Q48 1771894 242589 4478307 232239 4710636

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FEiERERER AR



72

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERDEER

Year ended 31 December 2013

HZE2013F12A31BIEFE
Notes
ra
At 1 January 201 H01351 A1R
Proft for the year Fmii
Other comprehensiieincome ~ £EE
for the year: g8:
Changes i fa value of THEERE
avallbl for-sdle LFEEY:
investments, net of tax ks
Exchange difrences on BERH
{ranslaton of foreign EfzE
operations

Tota comprehensieincome. - ER2ENELE

for the year

Re-recognion of non-controling £ A
interests related to the FERERNERD
put options

Aopopraion o stautoy  BAEETAES
surplus reserve

Dividends paid to non-contralling %8 FERER
shareholders
Final 2012 dvidend declred B EEWN1EERERE
Interim 2013 dhidend NIEERERS 15
Proposed fndl 2013 dhicend ~~ REB013ERAERE 15
Repurchase and cancellfon ~~ RAMEBE
of shares 39a)
Devecognion of non-controling SRR
nterests and recognition of -~~~ BFRE
the dference between the IR RE
derecognised non-controling (B E AR
interests and the iabiity
of the put options

245 =5
i

At 31 December 2013 RO0I3F12318

*

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREEARL
Available-
for-sale
investment Exchange Proposed
revaluation  Statutory fluctuation final Non-
Issued Share  Contributed Capital reserve surplus Discretionary reserve  Retained  dividend controlling Total
capital  premium  suplus  reseve  TEME  reseve  resenve EX  eamings e Totl  interests equity
BRfRE  ROBE REBR  EAEE REEGRE iRNBE  BREE  RERE  RERR  RER: B FERER  RuEE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARNTR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARRTR ARETR ARMTR
Note 39(g) Note 39(b) Note 39(c) ~ Note 39(d)
K59 B sy Wiy
21,58 1,083,792 (1512 (2152 (14123 464402 B0 (418) 1771804 242580 4478307 232,230 4710636
- - - - - - - - 13036 - 13036 6217 736,57
- - - - M - - - - - 2m .M
- - - - - - - 22,064 - - 2,064 - 2,064
- - - - 12,119 - - 2064 730,356 - 165,199 6217 771416
- - - - - - - - - - - N 2120
- - - - - 45040 - - (145040 - - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - (8,298) (8,208)
- - - - - - - - - (42589)  (242,589) - (42589
- (198,780) - - - - - - - - (19780) - (198,780)
- (167,2%) - - - - - - - 16725 - - -
1) (6,485) - - - - - - - - (6,502) - (6,502)
- - - ur - - - - - - 41 (222566 (222,119
21512 1,611,002 (15120 (1079 (1,344  600442° 3370t 19646* 2367210t 167205 4796172 229,712 5025884

These reserve accounts comprise the

consolidated reserves of RMB4,607,365,000 (2012:
RMB4,214,219,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating
activities

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid
land premiums
Amortisation of other
intangible assets
Loss on disposal of items

of property, plant and equipment

Foreign exchange differences

Gains on disposal of unquoted
investment stated at cost

Fair value (gains)/losses,
net:
Derivative instruments

— transactions not qualifying
as hedges

Dividend income from available-
for-sale investments

Finance costs

Share of losses of a joint
venture

Interest income

(Write-back of provision)/provision
for slow-moving inventories

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Increase in trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Decrease in investments at fair
value through profit or loss

Decrease in long-term
prepayments

Increase in trade payables,
other payables and accruals

Increase in long-term payables

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating
activities

Notes
i

REXBHBRERE

B 4 AT g )
TS BEELAE
e 10
TEAS £ b 5
10
H b B B 5N
10
BEEYE  BE
NS EiES 10
&5 =%
RERKAGTEMNIELT
1% B W= 10
NFE () Bk
HEE
THESRBITA
— A H
2R 10
RKEAHEERERN
B 2 WA 10
B & AR 9

DERELEER

B HA 7
T E
(BmEm) &% 10

& GEm
JEWE 5 7RI
FEANRIE - Re REM
& W 5k TR 3
BRATFEF ABE

B 12 B R
RERTAR RIEH

D
FERE 58 - HAty
FERT FRIE K JEET & 15 A0
= HA & 5 R IE 18 o0

REmBHRE
EAEH

REXBRERAFHE

GEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2013

HE20135E12A31RILEE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARET T
1,035,115 922,017
302,326 241,238
11,987 9,902
3,062 3,067
10,185 5,706
(26,592) -
(1,672) -
(755) 767
(1,894) -
55,998 43,550
3,658 1,889
(122,718) (103,863)
(1,299) 2,445
1,267,401 1,126,718
(67,932) 143,454
(622) (22,634)

= 30,023
18,453 19,907
80,884 277,308
9,285 7,293
1,307,469 1,582,069
(304,057) (254,608)
1,003,412 1,327,461
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

?E'AIEEMLE%

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F12ABIBILEE

Cash flows from investing
activities

Proceeds from disposal of assets
of a disposal group classified as
held for sale

Interest received

Gains on disposal of unquoted
investment stated at cost

Dividends received from
available-for-sale investments

Dividends received from
a joint venture

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items
of property, plant and equipment

Payments of prepaid land premiums

Purchases of available-for-sale
investments

Proceeds paid for Acquisition of
a joint venture

Proceeds paid for Acquisition of
an associate

Proceeds paid for acquisition of
a subsidiary

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Capital injection from
non-controlling shareholders

Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale listed
investments

Increase in the unquoted investment

stated at cost
Increase in structured deposits
Increase in restricted cash
Increase in time deposits

Net cash flows used in investing BREFZEFTABRESHREEHE

activities
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Notes

g3

40

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR® T ARBTT
6,530 -
97,267 93,355
1,672 -
1,894 -
4,815 -
(689,387) (693,431)
4,601 3,792
(34,429) (521,314)
(20,521) (127,486)
- (24,853)
(45,166) -
(46,534) (137,304)
6,789 -
- 21,144
81 2,200
(14,000)
(1,177,000) (710,000)
(550,000)
(57,464) (319,818)
(2,510,852) (2,413,715)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from financing
activities

Repayment of bank borrowings

New bank borrowings

Acquisition of non-controlling
interests

Repurchase of the Company's
shares

Proceeds from issuance of
short-term financing notes

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders

Interest paid

Net cash flows from financing
activities

Net decrease in cash
and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year

Analysis of balances of cash
and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits
with original maturity of three
months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as
stated in the statement
of cash flows

Notes

liogz3

MEZDFRERERE

{EEIRITER
MERITER
Yo FR PR AR 2

LAEINGINES

BITRHRES

2R

B 5 SRR B BCR B 8

EAHE

MEERHMEREREFH

REeERALEEY
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RBEEEEY
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Year ended 31 December 2013

HZE2013E12AZIB I EE
2013 2012
—E—-=fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARETR ARET T
(1,748,140) (468,910)
2,287,116 977,053
= (4,604)

(6,502) -
896,400 -
(441,369) (284,338)
(8,298) (8,299)
(51,081) (52,456)
928,126 158,446
(579,314) (927,808)
1,026,477 1,945,929
(5,540) 8,356
441,623 1,026,477
436,361 1,026,477
5,262 -
441,623 1,026,477
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 75 AR R 3R

31 December 2013
201312 831H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in a subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
Net assets
EQUITY

Issued capital
Reserves

Proposed final dividend

Total equity

Chen Jiangiang
BRE &

Director

BEF

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

Notes
k=3
kRBEE
R B A RIER 43
ERBEERTE
REBEE
FENRIE e
N E b W T8 29
ReRBREEEY 31
MEBEEHEE
FEE
s
BEITRA 39(a)
& 39(e)
BORE SRR S 15

Tao Qingrong
W BB B

Director

EE

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E—=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR ARETFT
1,467,881 1,993,178
1,467,881 1,993,178

227 234

25,568 670
25,795 904
1,493,676 1,994,082
21,572 21,589
1,304,869 1,729,904
167,235 242,589
1,493,676 1,994,082




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Springland International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
on 21 June 2006 under the Companies Law, Cap.22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The registered office address of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KYI-1111, Cayman Islands. The
Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 21 October
2010.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the operation of department stores and supermarkets
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company (the “Directors”), the ultimate
holding company of the Group is Octopus Holdings
Foundation, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise standards
and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”), and
International Accounting Standards and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved
by the International Accounting Standards Committee
that remain in effect, and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for some investments and derivative financial
instruments which have been measured at fair value.
Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and
fair values less costs to sell as further explained in
note 2.4. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
B Z2013F12A31ALFE
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EiHBREZERER AR (RAQF]) R
200656 H21BRIEREHERAEES
22F (1961F A PI3 » &8 47 & REE])
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A) o AN A &) 7 i 3 == BE Hh 4k A Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KYI-1111, Cayman
Islands ° N2 1A 2010F 1021 BEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2013. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group losses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and

revised IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements.

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

228 BRN BB RIKE

AEEAANFEELMBRE B RRM
AT ] RARETBIRR B 5 &5 2 ) o

IFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of International Financial Reporting
Standards -Government Loans

IFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12

IFRS 12 Amendments - Transition Guidance
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IAS 1 Amendments

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements - Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

IAS 19 Amendments Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits
IAS 27 Revised Separate Financial Statements
IAS 28 Revised Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs issued
2009-2011 Cycle in Jung 2012

The adoption of the revised IFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013

HZE2013F12A31BIEFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments *
IFRS 9, IFRS 7 and Hedge Accounting and amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 Amendments IFRS 7 and IAS 39*

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27

2.3 B M8 {8 1) R A4 R A B B B 75
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ZHIA: £5-H#sd
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BB e ERBI0F LT 28
TA BRE 18428
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#R

R013F12 AL AR KRS
ERETHRE
RO1BF12 AL ER R KRS
BRI TRIEE

IAS 27 (Revised) (Revised}- Investment Entities '
Amendments
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts ®
IAS 19 Amendments Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits - Defined
Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions ®
IAS 32 Amendments Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities '
IAS 36 Amendments Amendments to IAS 36 Impairment of Assets -
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets '
IAS 39 Amendments Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement - Novation
of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting '
IFRIC 21 Levies'
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs issued in
2010-2012 Cycle December 2013 2
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of IFRSs issued in
2011-2013 Cycle December 2013 ?
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is
available for adoption
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Further information about those IFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part
of phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely
replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. This phase focuses on the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Instead of classifying financial assets into four
categories, an entity shall classify financial assets
as subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value, on the basis of both the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify the
approach for the classification and measurement of
financial assets compared with the requirements of
IAS 39.

In October 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS
9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and
incorporated in IFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of IAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged
from IAS 39, while changes were made to the
measurement of financial liabilities designated as
at fair value through profit or loss using the fair
value option (“FVQO”). For these FVO liabilities, the
amount of change in the fair value of a liability that
is attributable to changes in credit risk must be
presented in OCI. The remainder of the change
in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless
presentation of the fair value change in respect of the
liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However,
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
which have been designated under the FVO are
scoped out of the Additions.

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F12A31HILFE

2.3I1SSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 © M/ 1B 18 & &£ Y B B Bt 75

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

In December 2013, the IASB added to IFRS 9 the
requirements related to hedge accounting and made
some related changes to IAS 39 and IFRS 7 which
include the corresponding disclosures about risk
management activity for applying hedge accounting.
The amendments to IFRS 9 relax the requirements
for assessing hedge effectiveness which result in
more risk management strategies being eligible for
hedge accounting. The amendments also allow
greater flexibility on the hedged items and relax the
rules on using purchased options and non-derivative
financial instruments as hedging instruments. In
addition, the amendments to IFRS 9 allow an entity
to apply only the improved accounting for own credit
risk-related fair value gains and losses arising on FVO
liabilities as introduced in 2010 without applying the
other IFRS 9 requirements at the same time.

IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in IAS 39 on impairment of financial assets continues
to apply. The previous mandatory effective date of
IFRS 9 was removed by the IASB in November 2013
and a mandatory effective date will be determined
after the entire replacement of IAS 39 is completed.
However, the standard is available for application
now. The Group will quantify the effect in conjunction
with other phases, when the final standard including
all phases is issued.

Amendments to IFRS 10 include a definition of an
investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet
the definition of an investment entity. Investment
entities are required to account for subsidiaries at
fair value through profit or loss in accordance with
IFRS 9 rather than consolidate them. Consequential
amendments were made to IFRS 12 and IAS 27
(Revised). The amendments to IFRS 12 also set out
the disclosure requirements for investment entities.
The Group expects that these amendments will not
have any impact on the Group as the Company is not
an investment entity as defined in IFRS 10.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

The IAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set off”
for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.
The amendments also clarify the application of the
offsetting criteria in IAS 32 to settlement systems
(such as central clearing house systems) which
apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous. The amendments are not expected
to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on
1 January 2014.

The IAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended
disclosure requirement made by IFRS 13 on the
recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit
which is not impaired. In addition, the amendments
require the disclosure of the recoverable amounts
for the assets or cash-generating units for which an
impairment loss has been recognised or reversed
during the reporting period, and expand the
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value
measurement for these assets or units if their
recoverable amounts are based on fair value less
costs of disposal. The amendments are effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2014 with earlier application
permitted, provided IFRS 13 is also applied.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHBERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Subsidiaries (continued)

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of profit or loss to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has
a long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates
and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s
investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control
over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHBERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified
as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument
and within the scope of IAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in
profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. If the contingent consideration is not within
the scope of IAS 39, it is measured in accordance
with the appropriate IFRSs. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHBERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss
is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to of a
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

EBEHREE (H)
MELDBAIEEEERCRSELE
7 (k—HBREELEN) 2T WEISER
BT - WASELEM (I—HREEL
B) Zz Al El e BERIREE - IR
MEREE A ERRZBREBETS
REREREE -

MEENERRSELEN (H—HER
SESBEM)  MZEMREDEHE D
S AIREEHEEKERE - AR
BRFAEBZREE - EURIFRT
HEZHERBMEEXEK 2 HEEE
KRB Z AR ELBTE -

DFEEE

EREHERE  AREZSRTAN
AFEAE - RFEREERAFRS
oREBBANETERETEERE
HEBHBENEHE XV EFERKE
ERNER: BREEEEXERAE
MRHELEERZEEXRRENENS
KERERBEIMBHEBRT @ ZRXP
BEAEREERABENRBENTS - &
AEEMS THHEREEZRBNNS
WAEAESH BEEXABENRFE
EUTSE2EENEELRBEERAA
ENRERTER  BEREITRENE
R ENmRAAE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F12ABIBILEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHBERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets, goodwill
and non-current assets/a disposal group classified
as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

FEMEERE

BEFEREAAE (TEEFE &/
BE BENFERDEE DRLEEE
EBOBERBERE)  MERstEEMN
AEEE - EEMNAIWRESEIZEE
KRS ELEEUNEREBEMRFER
HERABROKSEFE X at@ER
BEET BRIFZBEETEELGEEK
BEEBYRNEMEESEEMRNER
ERAR - AL ER T Al W & B iR
BEFMBRGELBUET -

HMEBRESEEEMNREERLE
AUl SRR T T RER - R AERE
B At RRIBERE AR RRE R
SHEKREEREERBRAROTA
MARBRERE - BEBBEELES
R et % T B RZORE B E T e AT Y
58 S K8 51 H0ER o

ARFGEEREAFEEEATRE
RERERNREBREE TBFEX
AIEER A o M IRZFHR - Al G E&T
BEMAWESHE ERNEEXEE
e R R R A 2 - T e Bm L
AIER A E E (BERIN RERRE - B
BRERNBEIFEATFERRLE
$ha%IE & E R R ORU(E B 18 T FE EE TE AV IR
EE R ERTE#) - BEEBR
BEogsrt AEEBENKER -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)

(ii)
(ii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHBERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not
depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
IFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy
for “Non-current assets and disposal groups held
for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value of nil to 5% over its
estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives used
for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings
Renovation and leasehold

20 to 40 years
2 to 10 years

improvements
Machinery 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Furniture and office equipment 3 to 5 years
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents stores and
storage facilities under construction, or renovation
works in progress. Construction in progress is
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sales transaction
rather than through continuing use. For this to be the
case, the asset or disposal group must be available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for the
sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale
must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities
of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are
reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the
Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F12ABIBILEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHBERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale (continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified
as held for sale,which are acquired as part of a
business combination, are measured at fair values
less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets classified as held for sale are not
depreciated or amortised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value as at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Lease agreement buyouts

The lease agreement buyouts represented the
Group’s payments to old tenants to buy out their
lease agreements. The lease agreement buyouts are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms of 10 to 19 years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, are included in property,
plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases
are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the
case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHBERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with positive net changes in fair value
presented as other income and gains and negative
net charges in fair value presented as finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss. These net
fair value changes do not include any dividend or
interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
IAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are
accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded
at fair value if their economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for
trading or designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss category.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gain in
the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses
for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are
non-derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted
equity investments and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those
which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
Debt securities in this category are those which are
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time
and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in the market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
other income, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or
loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHBERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the
variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b)
the probabilities of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such investments are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and
intention to sell its available-for-sale financial assets
in the near term are still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the
assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the
available-for-sale category, the fair value carrying
amount at the date of reclassification becomes its
new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss
on that asset that has been recognised in equity is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If
the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to
the statement of profit or loss.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

RERHECEWMEE (&)

HRHERBKRE (E)
fHIFEMRAEBESHAFER@QEER
FEGEENESHHZIRENSZE
BERZF(O)BEARE TEH A EERZE
BB E kA EGETAFEm AR
St E - A% FEF BB AR
BEEBARK-

AEBEFEEOHEEETHEESH
BEZBEORERARERE - HWEFH
BATAEEAMS NEREMELER
ZETHMEE MEEASEBENNR
BEERBZEEEENARSKHKES
HB  AIRNKERESEERZETSR
BEEENOE -

R HEEENEDENEREEM
BOZAERSETRIANZEENTM
Wt kB IR E R ER A A ERE R
PRFRMBEIL T AR - MEHR AR
BFHREREZENEMNZHEEERE
BRAFRREEN R R FRENE - WE
EEREBRBE B ARENSHEE
EMoBEERESR -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F12ABIBILEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHBERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement
of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of
any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is
removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHBERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss -
is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value
after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Future
interest income continues to be accrued based on
the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded
as part of finance income. Impairment losses on
debt instruments are reversed through the statement
of profit or loss if the subsequent increase in fair
value of the instruments can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, or loans and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, derivative financial instruments and
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHBERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

Put options to non-controlling shareholders

In connection with an acquisition of a subsidiary
by the Group, put options were granted to certain
non-controlling shareholders of the subsidiary to
sell their equity interests to the Group. The Group
does not have present ownership interest of the
shares held by those non-controlling shareholders.
The non-controlling interests are recognised at the
date of the business combination, and subsequently
measured according to the policies described in the
basis of consolidation. At each reporting date, the
non-controlling interests are then derecognised as
if they were acquired at each reporting date. The
liability of the put options is then recognised at each
reporting date at its fair value, and any difference
between the amount of non-controlling interests
derecognised and this liability is accounted for in
equity.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

THEE (&)
Bk 2 (&)
BRFEGFARRNEHEE (E)

E7E0R B B R & 5t 2 R 3957 B + 7))
HERABERBEREREAFER
ABSHNEREE-

ERREHL

IR R A EERRBHRERER
BERFEERAEERATE - FRIFRER
IRETEAN ERBAT  E@MARE
JELARNANGT & - BER ILFERK BB
ERERNRANEFBEES WS
KR W R R RERR o

AAEEHAAR  ERMEEENTW
FELEE ERFIE/SERNEAN
kR AR 10 B B S AR o R R 2R 4 5
FFAME R BERA

FEHE IR 1 2 R R 3808 B
RASEWBHNEBARME @ b
ERTHBRARE TIHERZERRE
AR E RS TAKE - NEBEREL
BZEFERERERRSTANBRND A
BEEEERD  FERBEDREBL A G
EHER  BRRERESEEMMEE
FE-REREBH  BERBURERIE
ZRESE BRSO REHRE AR
BoREHEABEMN SRS AL
NFEER - MBUR RO IEERER
HZBEZHENEBABREAR -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments,
such as forward currency contracts and interest rate
swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risk and interest
rate risk, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value
is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for
resale and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of merchandise is determined
on the weighted average basis. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to disposal. Consumables are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 55 R 3% B B

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHBERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short-term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as
to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amounts
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, a
joint venture and an associate, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F12A31HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHBEME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
a joint venture and an associate, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value
is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and released to the statement
of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

Bonus point liabilities

The Group operates a loyalty point programme, which
allows customers to accumulate points when they
purchase products in the Group’s department stores
and supermarkets. The points can then be redeemed
for gifts and coupons, subject to a minimum
number of points being obtained. The coupons are
cash-equivalent when customers use them to
purchase products of the Group.

Consideration received is allocated between the
products sold and the points issued, with the
consideration allocated to the points equal to their
fair value. Fair value of the points is determined by
applying statistical analyses. The fair value of the
points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue
when the points are redeemed.
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Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following bases:

e revenue from direct sales of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

° commission income from concessionaire sales
is recognised upon the sale of goods by the
relevant stores;

e rental income is recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms;

e fee income from suppliers is recognised
according to the underlying contract terms
with suppliers when these services have been
provided in accordance therewith;

e interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

e dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee retirement benefits

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC
Government, all the subsidiaries of the Group
that were established in Mainland China (the
“PRC Subsidiaries”) have participated in a local
municipal government retirement benefit scheme
(the “Scheme”), whereby the PRC Subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of their employees to the Scheme to
fund their retirement benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to
pay the ongoing contributions under the Scheme.
Contributions under the Scheme are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Where
funds have been borrowed generally, and used
for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a
capitalisation rate of 3.35% has been applied to the
expenditure on the individual assets.
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Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24T ESHBERE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are
classified as a separate allocation within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association grant the Directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated
outside Mainland China have Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) or United States dollars (“US$”) as their
functional currencies, respectively. The functional
currency of the PRC Subsidiaries is Renminbi.
As the Group mainly operates in Mainland China,
Renminbi is used as the presentation currency of the
Group. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
differences on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than Renminbi.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into
the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Renminbi at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Renminbi
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F12ABIBILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgement, apart from those involving estimations,
which has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below:

Impairment of gooadwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
unit to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
at 31 December 2013 was RMB206,494,000 (2012:
RMB184,167,000). Further details are contained in
note 21 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses and deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses and deductible
temporary differences at 31 December 2013 was
RMB54,489,000 (2012: RMB57,502,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December
2013 was RMB64,936,000 (2012: Nil). Further details
are contained in note 26 to the financial statements.

Bonus point liabilities

The amount of revenue attributable to the credit
award earned by the customers of the Group’s
loyalty point programme is estimated based on the
fair value of the credits awarded and the expected
redemption rate. The expected redemption rate was
estimated considering the number of the credits
that will be available for redemption in the future
after allowing for credits which are not expected to
be redeemed. The carrying amount of bonus point
liabilities at 31 December 2013 was RMB46,300,000
(2012: RMB37,336,000).

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the current liabilities of the
Group exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB1,447 million. In the opinion of the Directors, it is
an industry practice for the retail business to keep a
low level of current ratio. The Directors have prepared
these financial statements on a going concern basis
notwithstanding the net current liability position
because the Directors expected that the Group
will generate sufficient cash inflows from the sales
proceeds on the operation of department stores and
supermarkets to meet its financial obligations when
they fall due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F12A31HILFE

5.

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has two reportable operating segments
as follows:

—  Department store segment
—  Supermarket segment

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest
income, finance costs, dividend income, fair value
gains/(losses) from the Group’s financial instruments
as well as head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from this measurement.

Segment assets exclude the Group’s available-
for-sale investments, deferred tax assets, tax
recoverable, investments at fair value through profit
or loss, structured deposits, derivative financial
instruments, cash and cash equivalents, assets of a
disposal group classified as held for sale and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank
borrowings, derivative financial instruments, tax
payable, liabilities directly associated with the assets
classified as held for sale, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities
as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013

B Z2013F12A31ALFE
5. OPERATING SEGMENT 5. K& WEFR (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Year ended Department
31 December 2013 store  Super-market Total
HZ2013512A31ALLEE BERE B st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR AR®TR AR¥ETR
Segment revenue ik 16
Sales to external customers HHNBEPHHEE 1,684,491 2,477,109 4,161,600
Segment results DEEE 874,023 151,714 1,025,737
Reconciliation: #Hik
Interest and dividend income and FERBEMARARAER
unallocated gains e 188,368
Corporate and other unallocated expenses 2 & K E 4t & 2 B b 2 (122,992)
Finance costs BAKK (55,998)
Profit before tax B 50 A& 7 1,085,115
Segment assets STHEE 7,119,807 1,275,090 8,394,897
Reconciliation: Hik
Corporate and other unallocated assets AEREMKRAREE 3,712,468
Assets of a disposal group classified BEREAE
as held for sale 24,738
Total assets BEE 12,132,103
Segment liabilities FHEE 2,879,737 641,432 3,521,169
Reconciliation: Hik -
Corporate and other unallocated liabllites 2@ R EM AN & E 3,581,943
Liabilities directly associated with HEEREEEER
the assets classified as held for sale HENAE 3,107
Total liabilities Y= 7,106,619
Other segment information HthpBEN
Share of loss of a joint venture NEEETENER 3,658 - 3,658
Depreciation and amortisation nER#E 247,352 65,943 313,295
Corporate and other unallocated amounts 72 &) J2 E At 5k 7 Bt 208 4,080
Total depreciation and amortisation HEREBHEG 317,375
Investment in a joint venture RENERNEE 302,443 - 302,443
Capital expenditure BARX 568,262 106,542 674,804
Corporate and other unallocated amounts 72 & J2 E 4 & 5 B 78 3,015
Total capital expenditure * BEAREY 677,819
Write-back of provision for
slow-moving inventories BHFERERD (880) (419) (1,299)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,

plant and equipment, prepaid land premiums and other
intangible assets including assets from the acquisition

of subsidiaries.
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HZE2013F12A31BIEFE
5. OPERATING SEGMENT 5. REDHER (&)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Year ended Department
31 December 2012 store Super-market Total
HZE2012F12A31A L FE BEE B @t
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT ARETT ARET T
Segment revenue 2B E
Sales to external customers HONBEPHHEE 1,550,993 2,255,895 3,806,888
Segment results DWEE 756,967 191,348 948,315
Reconciliation: #Hik
Interest and dividend income and FIBRBRERARKSE
unallocated gains Wz 127,168
Corporate and other unallocated expenses A & R Lty K 7 AL F X2 (109,916)
Finance costs BAMKK (43,550)
Profit before tax 150 A i ) 922,017
Segment assets ITHEE 6,729,629 1,174,829 7,904,458
Reconciliation: #k -
Corporate and other unallocated assets RERAMKDREE 2,446,374
Assets of a disposal group classified RAREAE
as held for sale 30,738
Total assets BEE 10,381,570
Segment liabilities FBEE 2,915,517 598,068 3,513,585
Reconciliation: #k -
Corporate and other unallocated liabiities A F R EM KD E A E 2,154,242
Liabilities directly associated with EREHEEEER
the assets classified as held for sale HENEE 3,107
Total liabilities Bmaf 5,670,934
Other segment information o BEH
Share of loss of a joint venture AEARECENER 1,889 - 1,889
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 193,861 56,060 249,921
Corporate and other unallocated amounts ‘2 & & E 4 & 7 B 708 4,286
Total depreciation and amortisation WEREEAR 254,207
Investment in a joint venture RERERNKRE 260,935 - 260,935
Capital expenditure BEARREY 1,772,809 344,291 2,117,100
Corporate and other unallocated amounts 2 & &2 4t K 7 Bt 5008 3,936
Total capital expenditure * BERRT 2,121,036
Provision for slow-moving inventories BEFERE 491 1,054 2,445

Y BAHXBRAEDE BERRE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical information

All of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers
based in Mainland China and all of the non-current
assets of the Group are located in Mainland China.

Information about a major customer

No revenue derived from sales to a single customer
or a group of customers under the common control
accounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue
for the year.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amount received and
receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less allowances for returns and trade
discounts; commission income from concessionaire
sales, net of sales taxes and surcharges; and
other revenue that arises in the ordinary course of
business.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Sales of goods — direct sales
Commission income from

concessionaire sales (Note) L ONCE:D,
Total turnover FLR
Rental income Ha WA
Provision of food and beverage REERRS
service
Total revenue #u A

BmiHE -—ERHEE
KEBHEEHENRHS

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

RETHER ()

AEBRARAKREFEAMES - M
AEERBHERBEELRNTBEAM -

FEEFMNEHR
RAFELE|E - RHARZH TH
—HAEPHHEEEAREEKA10%HIA
J: o

A
WAEAEERIIFEFHEERZE
U K e W R TR IR B I B 5 T R
KERFAELHENMS WAMBRIHEE
MEHINE AR —REBBREPEL
B E AU A o

WA D25 T

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARETT

2,656,809 2,455,051
1,386,741 1,248,509
4,043,550 3,703,560
105,500 87,893
12,550 15,435
4,161,600 3,806,888
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013

HZE2013F12A31HIEFE
6. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 6. WA (&)
Note: Hat -
The commission income from concessionaire sales is KEBFFELHENFESWALTTWT ¢

analysed as follows:

2013 2012
—E—-=F T F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T AR®EF T
Gross revenue from concessionaire & B 45 #F B4 E TS K
sales 8,373,147 7,315,961
Commission income from REFTELEHENARA
concessionaire sales 1,386,741 1,248,509
7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7. Ht AR W=
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARE TR ARETFIT
Other income Hapug A
Fee income from suppliers REHEFHERKA 516,590 439,213
Interest income R U A 122,718 103,863
Dividend income from available- KEAHEE EH
for-sale listed investments =& /R B A 1,894 -
Subsidy income N 26,506 18,487
Others Hih 12,668 4,496
680,376 566,059
Gains Y &5
Foreign exchange differences, net [E X =% - R %8 25,992 -
Gains on disposal of unquoted BREEKAGERNIELT
investment stated at cost B W 1,672 -
Fair value gains, net: N EWE - FE
Investments at fair value BAFEFABRN
through profit or loss WE-—HBIERXS
— held for trading - 322
Derivative instruments mE2mIA
— transactions not — & H
qualifying as hedge ERLIRXD 755 -
28,419 322
708,795 566,381
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses mainly include utility expenses,
advertising and promotion expenses, loss on
disposal of property, plant and equipment, office
expenses, maintenance costs, travelling expenses,
entertainment expenses, property tax and
government surcharges and other miscellaneous
expenses.

FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

REIRE Z R B

Interest on short-term
financing notes

Interest on bank borrowings AR AFAZEES

wholly repayable within RIT KA T E
five years
Less: Interest capitalised

R - EAEH B

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

H B X
HAZ T ERREKERS  BEEE
R -ME BEAREHNREERSE -
MAERY HEREMER 2K
B INBMEBER WEN  BUSH INE S
FE M FEREF o

B & LA

BEREDFTAT
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—-_F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR%ET ARETF T
33,953 -
51,081 52,456
(29,036) (8,906)
55,998 43,550

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 30 BB 1% % A fR A 7

121



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013

B ZE20135F12A31AIEFE
10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10. BR B AT 3% R
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after REBNBRBAANENG, (Gt A) T
charging/(crediting): 5| & 18 -
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
Notes RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
k23 AR® T AR¥T T
Cost of inventories sold FEHEKA 2,311,346 2,109,426
(Write-back of provision)/ T E (BERR) BE

provision for slow-moving

inventories (1,299) 2,445
Depreciation e 18 302,326 241,238
Amortisation of prepaid land TEfT b RS # 8

premiums 19 11,987 9,902
Amortisation of other intangible H fth # Ji7 & 7= # 84

assets 20 3,062 3,067
Loss on disposal of items of BREME  WERFK

property, plant and 0 S

equipment 10,185 5,706
Minimum lease payments KEHETHERS :

under operating leases:

Land and buildings T REF 80,842 67,959
Auditors’ remuneration ZE R B & 2,724 2,663
Staff costs including Directors’ B T A (BIEE F &1TI

and chief executive’s wEEM) (Bat11) -

remuneration (note 117):

Wages, salaries and bonuses T & * #r& RIEAL 439,008 366,647

Pension scheme contributions 3R k& 5t 2|t 7% 56,240 38,577

Other social security costs HEtrtgiRieER 77,988 77,454
Foreign exchange differences, [N Z% @ F5

net (25,992) 2,381
Dividend income from REAHEHE EMIRER

available-for-sale listed ¥V ON

investments (1,894) -
Gains on disposal of unquoted B EIZKAGTEMNIEL™

investment stated at cost &M = (1,672) -
Fair value (gains)/losses, net:  AF{E (W zk) 1BKFEE -

Investments at fair value BEAFEFABENEE

through profit or loss —BERXS
— held for trading - (322)
Derivative instruments — MEEBMIA-TFE
transactions not qualifying HAERLIRS
as hedges (755) 767
Share of loss of a NGB ERERNER
joint venture 22 3,658 1,889
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for
the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules
and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

Fees

Other emoluments:

Salaries, allowances and

benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions

H A FE
#e ORMREMF

R FBIHR

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

11. EE R 17 A B & N

BB LEHRAREEQAEIIE16115
PRk BR 8 = MITIRAREL N B B8 H R 1 B

ST

2013 2012
—E—-=F T F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR® T ARET T
576 585

3,990 4,079

96 101

4,086 4,180
4,662 4,765

(@) BUHFHTEF

REBARRENERBUIFRTES

Mr. Lin Zhijun MEELE
Mr. Zhang Weijiong o 4 MR 5% A
Mr. Wang Shuaiting FabIESL &

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2012: Nil).

WS
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR ARETFT
192 195
192 195
192 195
576 585

RERBHEY EENA B IERITES
HHEME S (20124F : &) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

(CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and

the chief executive

2013

Executive directors:
Mr. Chen Jiangiang
Mr. Tao Qingrong
Mr. Fung Hiu Lai
Mr. Yu Yaoming

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Wang Lin @
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John
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20135

PIESE:
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el el
BEREE
MERLE

FMTES:

e T
B

MEERITHARETM (&)

(b) BITEF  HFHTEFERITHAAL

Salaries,

allowances Pension

and benefits scheme
in kind contributions Total
Fees e 2N E4k€ remuneration
Be  REWAEGE BN HMA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARETF T ARET T ARET T
- 1,038 12 1,050
- 1,281 12 1,293
- 425 - 425
- 910 72 982
3,654 96 3,750
- 144 - 144
- 192 - 192
- 3,990 96 4,086




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and
the chief executive (continued)

11.

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

EERTHRASFH (&)

(b) BITEF HPTEFRTEAEL
(&)

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
inkind  contributions Total
Fees e RN ERE  remuneration
we  REDNZ AR HHast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
2012 20126
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Chen Jiangiang (3= - 1,054 10 1,064
Mr. Tao Qingrong B B 5 4 O - 1,300 25 1,325
Mr. Fung Hiu Lai BERS A - 425 - 425
Mr. Yu Yaoming EALE - 910 66 976
- 3,689 101 3,790
Non-executive directors: EHITES
Mr. Wang Lin T REED - 195 - 195
Mr. Fung Hiu Chuen, John BB L4 - 195 - 195
- 4,079 101 4,180

(i)  Mr. Tao Qingrong is also the chief executive
of the Group.

(i) Mr. Wang Lin resigned from his position
with effect from 25 October 2013.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

() MEREETRARENITR
AL -

(iy T FELEMN2013F10A25H
B EHB -

REBPHLBEESTLITRAIMEL
[F] 72 h 3 1 1) 36 B RO 22 Bk
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three (2012: three) directors, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 11 above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two
(2012: two) highest paid employees who are neither
a director nor chief executive of the Company for the
year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions RIKEET B R

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell
within following bands is as follows:

Nil to RMB1,000,000

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

e RMREYN S

TEARE-—BHET
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR —ABZ—7xxE
ARE—FHE+ET

12. TV & = & & Fr i

REBHRE IR HEEETIRE
£ (2012F :3RER)HFMFBH RN L
fisE11 - EgpoR (M TAREFHTREIT
BAEEH)NEARROMSFHBNOT

2013 2012
—E—-=F T F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBT ARET T

1,753 1,769
73 59
1,826 1,828

FBFEZEMFTRARTSHMESR
BN BRAE 515 B &0 B R E 1T IR

Number of employees

EBEH
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
1 1
1 1
2 2




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profit arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operate. The Group and the Company are not liable
for income tax in Hong Kong as they did not have
assessable income sourced from Hong Kong during
the year.

The Company is a tax-exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

Under the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
Corporate Income Tax Law (the “New CIT Law”), the
income tax rate became 25% starting from 1 January
2008. Therefore, provision for the PRC income tax
has been provided at the applicable income tax rate
of 25% (2012: 25%) on the assessable profits of the
PRC Subsidiaries.

Current — PRC corporate income — BIEi—F RN B E 157

tax charge for the year =3
Deferred (note 26) EIEFLIE (A7 i726)
Total tax charge for the year FAFIERZ BT

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

13. FT 5%

AEBANERELERANEERE QA
REEM LK EMERDEERMELESK
REHE M MAER - ARERAR
AIBABMEEMEN ARERAH
HIM Y R B BB ERTUA -

ARARARAEESEMRINEH A
EIS

RIEREARLME ([FE]) BEMB
BOE ([ EMSRIE] - B200841
B1BREIEHRRERE25% » Bt HHE
A B B 2 B R FE ER B i B R A TS
i R25% (20124F : 25%) ITHRHE ARG
TR -

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T AREF T
277,809 267,203
20,733 (1,445)
298,542 265,758
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

13.INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction
in which the Company and the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the

effective tax rate is as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate of
25% (2012: 25%)

Expenses not deductible for tax

Losses attributable to a
joint venture

Effect of withholding tax on the
distributable profits of the PRC
Subsidiaries

Tax losses not recognised

Tax charge at the Group’s
effective rate

The share of tax credit attributable to a joint venture
amounting to RMB1,219,000 (2012: RMB543,000)
is included in “Share of loss of a joint venture” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

13. R %i (&)

BAR R R H K EB M B QR M ATE

ALERER A TE B R G E M BR B AR FI AT
HEANHIERSYBREERRETENT
BERXHWEENT
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR ARBEFIT
R B0 B8 1,035,115 922,017
WA TERR25%TE MR E
(20124 : 25%) 258,779 230,504
TR A F 6,001 19,685
DHAEEDLENER
915 472
FEFNFL R BT B A &) A R
Vi I B 52 2
16,613 15,097
REERH T IE B 18 16,234 -
BRAEEBERRETED
RIERAX 298,542 265,758

DiEAE

EREBESF o

TtEHEERLEZE(ARE
1,219,0007T (20124 : A K #543,000
T EBRBRESGERERZS

TIJ—'_I/\ ,L/\



14.

15.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 14.

OWNERS OF THE PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of
the parent for the year ended 31 December 2013
includes a loss of RMB844,000 (2012: a loss of
RMB2,266,000), which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 39(e)).

DIVIDENDS 15.

Interim — HK$10 cents FRE - B AR A B 101l
(2012: HK$4 cents) (20124 & : 3BuEA)
per ordinary share

Proposed final - HK$8.5 cents FOREARERE — LB

(2012: HK$12 cents) TR B850
per ordinary share (20124 : B #&124U)

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The amount which the PRC Subsidiaries can legally
distribute by way of dividend is determined by
reference to the distributable profits as reflected in
their PRC statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with the accounting rules and regulations
in the PRC (“PRC GAAP”).

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

(SENCIE Fo DN R p

HE2013F12A831HIEFE &2
AEBAEBLEERIBEREEEAR
¥844,0007T (20124 : B A R ¥
2,266,0007T) ' ERAA A B Wk F
BE 12 (MI5E39(e)) ©

BB
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®BT ARBFTT
198,780 81,663
167,235 242,589
366,015 324,252

REE R RIS ZA R B EBCRE
FARELFARBBRILAE

FEMERARAEBREAEDSERNE
BMOZ2EZEREPEARSFTRAGER
# R B TE B 7 R BT R R AT R 0 R
i EE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

16.

17.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable
to the ordinary equity holders of the parent of
RMB730,356,000 (2012: RMB651,285,000), and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,499,847,238 (2012: 2,500,000,000) in issue during
the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares
in issue during those years.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The PRC Subsidiaries participate in a defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
the relevant government authorities for its employees
in Mainland China and contribute to these plans
based on a certain percentage of the salaries of the
employees on a monthly basis, up to a maximum
fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by the relevant
government authorities. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations payable to all existing and future retired
employees under these plans.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made. The
contributions to these plans are recognised as
employee benefit expenses when incurred.
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16.

17.

BRAEERERAEARLSE
JR 72t A

BRERNZFNDERFET AR L RK
BB AR R T AR ®730,356,0007T
(20124 : A R#651,285,0007T) &f
H WEREBETEBEBRMNEFHEH
2,499,847,238k% (20124 : 2,500,000,000
i) B R B AR AR B A -

AEBNBESHARETE EBREE
EHEETENEE TR -

EERKEF
RETEABZROAE  TEMEA
AE2EREHRFENRTE - 28PE
MEARREHAERZEAMEENERK
B HI &% 12 5 08 /0 P 72 30 [ 13 B0 S 35 3 B
THEMETELAFRERAS - ELEr S
T HRARREEHMERA LRKE
KA E B AERN A IERRKER -

B Lt st - AR R E B E A
BARBEF K - 7 3% F 5+ 8 80 R0
BERBAREERAFA



EQUIPMENT

31 December 2013

At 1 January 2013, net of
accumulated depreciation

Additions

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39)

Depreciation provided for the year

Transfers

Disposals

At 31 December 2013, net of
accumulated depreciation

At 31 December 2013:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

31 December 2012

At 1 January 2012, net of
accumulated depreciation

Additions

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39)

Depreciation provided for the year

Transfers

Disposals

At 31 December 2012, net of
accumulated depreciation

At 31 December 2012:
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

18. W% - BERRKRE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

20135124318

R2013E1 AR -
BB 2HTE
AE
WEHE AR H20)
EENERR
g
RE

20135128318
BB 2HTE

RR2013512831R :
B
ZitHE

BEFE

120126124318

R2012E1 AR
RREHE

AE

WEMBLA 259

EENERR

g5

RE

20125128318
RREHE
RR2012F12831R :
R
ZithE

FEFE

Renovation Furniture

Land and and leasehold Motor and office ~ Construction

buildings improvements Machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total
BAR

1HEET  BHRER Ba RE BAERE ERIE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTT  ARBTr  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
4,736,799 354,228 321,283 7,356 74,412 311,249 5,805,327
29,220 82,245 20,935 148 16,993 478,126 627,667
- 15,436 18 39 165 66 15,724
(153,771) (75,784) (46,396) (2,267) (24,108) - (302,326)
42,120 96,571 10,212 - 1,389 (150,292) -
(2,949 (4,381) (3,070) (27) (2,320) (2,039) (14,786)
4,651,419 468,315 302,982 5,249 66,531 637,110 6,131,606
5,349,183 693,280 535,376 12,085 157,214 637,110 7,384,248
(697,764) (224,965) (232,394) (6,836) (90,683) - (1,252,642)
4,651,419 468,315 302,982 5,249 66,531 637,110 6,131,606
3,396,672 204,316 267,288 8,447 66,838 493,780 4,456,341
214,470 131,761 33,296 1,234 22,832 724,689 1,128,282
468,630 - 1,597 276 937 - 471,440
(112,821) (64,103) (42,671) (2,249) (19,394) - (241,238)
770,848 66,629 63,411 - 6,332 (907,220) -
- (4,375) (1,638) (352) (8,133 - (9,498)
4,736,799 364,228 321,283 7,356 74,412 311,249 5,805,327
5,281,490 564,226 513,683 12,073 168,704 311,249 6,831,325
(544,691) (199,998) (192,300) (4,717) (84,292) - (1,025,998
4,736,799 354,228 321,283 7,356 74412 311,249 5,805,327
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2013, the application for
transfer the land use right certificate to property
ownership certificate for the Group’s land and
buildings amounting to RMB1,223,102,000
(2012: RMB1,294,088,000) was still in progress.

Certain of the bank loans of the Group as at
31 December 2012 are secured by the pledge of certain
of the Group’s property, plant and equipment with an
aggregate net book value of RMB427,224,000.

18.

19.

19. PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS
Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1ERIREE
Additions NE
Amortisation capitalised FEBHEERNLABYE
as property, plant and = K 55 A
equipment for the year
Recognised as expenses BRRFERX

during the year
Carrying amount at 31 December 12831 HRIREE

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and
is held under a long-term lease.

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Lease agreement buyouts HEHREE
Carrying amount at 1 January B1A1H M IREE
Recognised as expenses BRAEFEMRX

during the year
Carrying amount at 31 December #1231 HMEREE
The lease agreement buyouts represented the
Group’s payment to old tenants to buy out lease
agreements, and were amortised over the lease terms

on the straight-line basis.
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20.

YR BERHRE (E)

M2013%12A31H - KEENMEAEBE
AR #1,223,102,0007T (20124 : AR
#51,204,088,0007T) M) Lt R EF R F
VAR -

R2012F12A318 » AEBEREFES
ANE#427,224,0007t % - BUE K%
BEBEBERITHREREMNRITERNIE
R o

FENALHHES
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARBTTT
890,023 384,469
34,429 521,314
(13,032) (5,858)
(11,987) (9,902)
899,433 890,023

HELHUNRPEEAR  TREELHR
HRE -

Ht@BEEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBTT

44,474 47,541
(3,062) (3,067)
41,412 44,474

HE % B 5 A S E R RE SN 5UA
BEEHEERE  YRELZEHERR
B e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013

Goodwill acquired through business combinations
has been allocated to the department store
cash-generating unit for impairment testing. The
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has
been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by
senior management. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 15% (2012: 15%).

The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of
the cash-generating unit beyond the five-year period
from the end of the reporting period is 3% for all
years. This growth rate is below the average growth
rate of the retail industry for the past 10 years. Senior
management of the Company believes that using a
lower growth rate is a more conservative and reliable
choice for the purpose of this impairment testing.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the department store cash-generating unit for
31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012. The
following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill.

B ZE2013F12A31ALFE
21. GOODWILL 21. B8
RMB’000
AR¥F T
At 1 January 2012: 20121 A1 R -
Cost and net carrying amount AR R ERTE R A 127,439
Acquisition of a subsidiary I — MM B AR 56,728
Cost and net carrying amount 2012912 A31 B A A AR
at 31 December 2012 NAREEE 184,167
At 1 January 2013: M2013F1H18 :
Cost and net carrying amount AR K BR R E 184,167
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 40) U BE — RSB A 7 (A7:240) 22,327
Cost and net carrying amount M2013F12 431 H AR A
at 31 December 2013 KA FE 206,494
Impairment testing of goodwill BER AR

BREBAMELENRECIEEZEEE
EREEEBMERENR REESE
BUMARE AN REFERHEENE
BT -AtEZeH eRENTES
FritEmE R F RN BIEERRIR
CREEL - FTEFERSRERAE
FRBEIR K B15% (20124F : 15%) °

MEFERRNBENB RS HRESFRF
HERRASELBUNREREMER
BB R R BB% © IR EERBE10F
TETENFTHERER - ARASRE
BASME ERRENERELZR
BRI S JIBART M A] SER)EEE -

REWHARTE2013F12A8318 &
2012FF12AB1HBEEE R RELS
L e ATEHVIERERREEREBERH
BREEEK -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HE2013F12A31HILFE

21. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 21. & (&)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued) EmERERR (E)
Store revenue: BEE R :

the bases used to determine the future earnings
potential are average historical sales and expected
growth rates of the retail market in Mainland China.

Gross margins:

the basis used to determine the value assigned to the
budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins
achieved in the year immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency improvements,
and expected market development.

Expenses:

the basic factors used to determine the values
assigned are staff costs, rental expenses and other
expenses. Values assigned to the key assumptions
reflect past experience and management’s
commitment to maintain the Company’s operating
expenses at an acceptable level.

Discount rate:

the discount rate used is after tax and reflects
management’s estimate of the risks specific to the
cash-generating unit. In determining an appropriate
discount rate for the unit, regard has been given to
the applicable borrowing rate of the industry in the
current year.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of value in use of the
department store cash-generating unit, management
believes that no reasonably possible change in any of
the above key assumptions would cause the carrying
value, including goodwill, of the cash-generating unit
to materially exceed the recoverable amount.
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HiE R K o

HIEE

ANBTEEENREENEERRR
BEFEN —FRERNFHENE
RIEF AR A R IBRT SR E MM -

RIS :

AREEREEENERAEZSE TN
K MERXREMBRAX - DETEE
SR EERBBELRNERE AR
BARBEEMIERN ARSI KE -

BRI

FTAMBEREREK  XIRREEEH T
EXRSBEURARARNMGT -HEBE
NETABEBRREXRE DERAEFE
EARBEREER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013

HZE2013F12 A31HILFE
22. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 2. 5P ENKRE
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBT ARBTT

Share of net assets DIHEEFE 151,682 155,340
Goodwill on acquisition U B8z 105,595 105,595
As at 31 December ®12A31H 257,277 260,935
Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows: REFBESLMLEFHBENT -

Percentage of

BAl
Particulars of Ownership
issued shares held Place of interest Voting Profit Principal

Name 55 registration frEE power  sharing activity
#R BRTRGBFE i B REE  EHERN EX:3 3
Zhenjiang Baisheng Registered capital of PRC/ Operation of

Commercial Center US$10,000,000 Mainland China 50 50 50 department stores

Co., Ltd. AMELR hE/ BeEERE
ETAREN 10008 % T hEA

ARAR
The investment in the joint venture is held through a RNATEBEZENBAREEHA S
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. DERIEE -
The percentages of voting rights and profit sharing of HAEDPERZERNANBIPENED L
this joint venture are the same with the percentage of B EESOES 238 -

the ownership interest.

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 30 BB 1% % A fR A 7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013

HZE2013F12A31BIEFE

22.INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY-
CONTROLLED ENTITY
(CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the summarised
Group’s share financial information of the Group’s
joint venture:

Share of the joint venture's DIEEEDE

assets and liabilities: BEEMBE:
Current assets MEEE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current liabilities mEAaE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Net assets BEFE
Share of the joint venture’s results:
Revenue A
Other income N
Total expenses i %58
Tax credit HIEE R
Loss after tax iz E1E

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

22,

BELENKRE (&)

TRERTAKEDIERLLENUS

BHBE

2013 2012
—B-Z=F —ET-_F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARBET T
23,164 30,620
215,781 224,123
(45,771) (57,593)
(41,492) (41,810)
151,682 155,340

REErRNNBEERZINNAT :
2013 2012
—E-=4F —E-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T AREF T
22,526 32,438
2,947 3,049
25,473 35,487
(30,350) (37,919)
1,219 543
(3,658) (1,889)




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23.INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Share of net assets DB EFRE

As at 31 December MW12A31H

Particulars of the Group's associate are as follows:

Particulars Place of

of issued registration

Name shares held and business

28 BECRAIRMOFSE aMREEREL

Yixing Rongtong Registered capital of PRC/Mainland

Trade & Commerce RMB129,046,000 China

Limited HEAR wE/HERY
HERAHNZERAT NE%129,046,0007C

The investment in the associate is held through
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The percentages of voting rights and profit sharing of
this associate are the same with the percentage of
the ownership interest.

As the Company was set up at the end of the year,
there was no profit or loss during the year.

The following table illustrates the summarised
Group’s share financial information of the Group’s
associate.

Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Current liabilities mEAE
Net assets BEFE

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013

HE2013F12 8318 I LFE
23. W E N R KRE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—-_F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR ARET T
45,166 -
45,166 -

AEETEHEATFBEOT -

Percentage of

BAt
Ownership Voting Profit Principal
interest power sharing activity
FERRER RERE  EHERN EX:3 3
35 35 35 Operation of
supermarket
geEm

RATEBHEZENEB QA A L e
NAEIRE °
ARRAREEBERRNREROENE
DHEARRREENMEREEDZE DL
eI

HRZBE RN S FFREML - NF
BB EIE o

TRERTAEESHBE R RNTE

ERBE -
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T AREF T
15,808 -
30,281 -
(923) -
45,166 -

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 30 BB 1% % A fR A 7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS

Listed equity investments, at fair
value:
Shanghai

Unlisted equity investments,
at cost

Total non-current available-
for-sale investments

Unlisted equity investments,
at cost

Total current available-for-sale
investments

During the year, the gains in respect of the Group’s
listed equity investments, at fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income amounted to
RMB17,039,000 (2012: loss of RMB18,831,000).

As at 31 December 20183,

25. LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Rental prepayments

Prepayment for purchases of land

and buildings

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

certain unlisted
equity investments with a carrying amount of
RMB14,110,000 (2012: RMB110,000) were stated at
cost less impairment. The Directors are of the opinion
that their fair value cannot be measured reliably.

24. M HHERE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E—=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTF T ARBFT
FHRERIRE  UWAFEE
- 146,134 108,655
FELEMERIEE @ HKAFE
110 110
ERB AN ERE LR
146,244 108,765
ELEMERIEE @ EKARE
14,000 -
RBAHLERERE
14,000 -

BENEE
BE T MEFIEN KA

FR - BAFEFAEMZEREN
AEEBFTESRENRKRIEARY
17,039,0007T (20124 : [ AR
18,831,0007T) °

MR2013F12A831H EEEAARE
14,110,0007T (20124 : AR ¥110,000
JC) B E TR RS IR B LATOBR BB 18 HIAK
KINR - EERBZERENRFEE

CLEDER

25. REATA(F 7 E

2013 2012
—E—=F —E-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARBTTT
17,504 35,957
164,221 130,000
181,725 165,957




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 55 3 3% P B

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

26. JE FE B 1H
REMBHNETHASERABNE

26. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities

during the year are as follows: BT -
Deferred tax assets EEHRIEESE
Losses available
for offsetting Assets Accrued Bonus
against future disposal rental point  Available-
taxable profits loss  expenses liabilities for-sale
THEHAR REBEE  EitEe €E investments Others® Total
ERRENNER B Bx EAAE THHERZ H 0 @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARETR

Gross deferred tax assets 201251 A1AHK)
at 1 January 2012 ERRALELE 8,720 7,100 4,055 6,724
Deferred tax credited to equity ~ FRH T AEZH

10,014 36,613

during the year BERE - - - - 4,708 - 4,708
Deferred tax credited to FRFARER

the statement of profit or loss ~ EVEILHE

during the year (note 13) (Hi13) 5,895 4,568 1,823 2,610 - 1,285 16,181

Gross deferred tax assets R2012412A31H
at 31 December 2012 and R2013E1 A1E &

1 January 2013 BEREEERSR 14,615 11,668 5,878 9,334 4,708 11,209 57,502
Deferred tax credited to equity & P AEZH)
during the year EEHE - - - - (4,260) - (4,260)

Deferred tax credited /(charged) Rz AME R
to the statement of profit or MEERIE

loss during the year (note 13)  (#1#13) (6,220) 1,728 2,321 2,24 - 1,177 1,247
Gross deferred tax assets 20135 12A318 /)

at 31 December 2013 BEREEELSR 8,395 13,396 8,199 11,575 448 12,476 54,489
Note: Kzt -
(i)  Others mainly arise from temporary differences caused () HEMETEBRELERRY  EBitEXR

by pre-operating expenses, accrued expenses and
inventory provision.

FRERSHMNERRESR

In accordance with the PRC income tax laws and

RIEFBEMSHZELAN  BERTA

regulations, tax losses of an entity could be carried
forward for five years to offset against its future
taxable profits. Deferred tax assets relating to
unutilised tax losses are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow the deferred tax assets to be
utilised.

BRI EBRF  UWEHERRERT
wA - BEAARSBRABRNELTHEA
BE RRSEAERERHERD LM
BB RZERTER AL ER ) &

7
e

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED  FE b BIBR AR B IR A T



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

26.

Deferred tax had not been recognised in respect of
the tax losses amounting to RMB64,936,000 (2012:
Nil) arising in Mainland China during the year ended

31 December 2013.

Deferred tax liabilities

Gross deferred tax liabilities 201251 H18

at 1 January 2012 ELHIEARARE
Realisation during the year ENEER
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—RKHBRA

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to R ABZER
the statement of profit or loss ERHIB (M 5#13)
during the year (note 13)

Gross deferred tax liabilities #»2012F12H31H
at 31 December 2012 and %2013F1 A1HHK
1 January 2013 ERHEAEES

Realisation during the year FNEER

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to  F R A B
the statement of profit or loss BB (A 5#13)
during the year (note 13)

Gross deferred tax liabilities R2013%12H31H
at 31 December 2013 RELCHIAE AR

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

EERHIE (&)
R2013FE12831H  REBRFEA
WA ERNECHEEREEAARE

64,936,0007T (20124 : ) o

EEHREEE
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition of
subsidiaries
EIWKEEKE  Withholding
DAEEN taxes® Others® Total
ATERE BB Hp @t
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT ARETE ARETRT ARETR
274,547 36,451 52,762 363,760
- (14,946) - (14,946)
111,361 - - 111,361
(8,220) 15,097 7,859 14,736
377,688 36,602 60,621 474,911
- (22,689) - (22,689)
(12,524) 16,613 17,891 21,980
365,164 30,526 78,512 474,202




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

26.EER1E (48)
EEBEAE (&)

Notes:

Hat

(0

(i)

For presentation purposes,

Pursuant to the New CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% according to
managements’ best estimation. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

In the opinion of the Directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will, in the foreseeable
future, distribute earnings with an aggregate amount
of temporary differences of RMB634,200,000
(2012: RMB301,940,000) associated with investments
in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised at 31 December
2018.

Others mainly arise from temporary differences caused

by capitalised interest and accelerated tax deduction
of property, plant and equipment.

certain deferred

tax assets and liabilities have been offset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances
of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

(i)

(ii

MEIEBEMmE

BB EMERE P BRI
HINE R ERINEIREE TSRS
BEEZ10%TEMF - it 3R F B20084F1
A1B 4% @A K2007F12831H
?ﬁ%%ﬂ%ﬁ:ﬁqﬂﬂqi@ﬁw\\ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
ALEEERFI BB HE - K REE
TR AR TENB c AEEME *E}F
EEBEMAEGTERAMNER% -

i $EI/A?¢¢IWHJEX_LE’]W§
AJFA200841 A1 A #E AT E B 7 2R K9 iR
BB -

M2013%E 1283180 » BEERAKETER
4% & BT B8 A R FE A TE R A 5 SRR AT
DL 2525 A AR 634,200,000
7T (20124 :+ A R #301,940,0007T) 9
HEWRE  HETREEZEEEENET
ISR BEhAR FHER -

HipF EREANCH S5 BN R Z 8
K% - BB MR B INERR MESE -

ETELERAEER

BEERGEMBRREREKE - LT R

B E

HE WU AREERREN A

BRETT 2 DT

2013 2012

—E—=F —T—=F

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR TR ARBTF T
Net deferred tax assets RERE B AR R R
recognised in the consolidated £ ﬁk%ﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬁr%ﬁ

statement of financial position 49,546 54,918
Net deferred tax liabilities iz & B BAR Ri‘%ﬁﬁw

recognised in the consolidated BRERIE B EFE
statement of financial position (469,259) (472,327)
(419,713) (417,409)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

27.

28.

INVENTORIES

Store merchandise, at cost or net  JE#I M@ * IR
realisable value
Low value consumables

EEHEM

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s inventories
with a carrying amount of RMB5,267,000
(2012: RMB6,482,000) were carried at fair value less
costs to sell.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

All of the Group’s sales are on a cash basis except
for certain bulk sales of merchandise which are credit
sales. The credit terms offered to customers are
generally one month.

None of the balances of the trade receivables at each
reporting date is either past due or impaired.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables at each
reporting date, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

Within one month —@AR

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

A BF A E

27.

28.

rH
2013 2012

—E—=F —E—-_F

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR%T ARETF T
382,096 312,394

1,287 1,758

383,383 314,152

M2013F12A31H AEBEEEA
AR #5,267,0007T (20124 + AR#&
6,482,00070) MFE « THER R FERK
HER A FRERTE ©

FEW & 5 7R
BRETARERBEREEBEN &
SEMAHENRRASEERT BT
EPMEES—RA—EA -

RERE HRERIE 5 HRR&E %
WESH - AELFRE -

REREANEREESHARERZAY
B DRRESMTANT -

2013 2012
—E—-=F T F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARE TR ARET T
13,026 8,610




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group

Value-added tax recoverable AT el (E R
Prepayments to suppliers [m) fH FE 78 TE 1 5RIB
Other receivables from suppliers 7] £ /& 75 £ 4th & I 3k T8
Prepaid rental and deposits ENEe RiRe

POS receivables POSJE I 3k 18

Interest receivables JE WL F B

Dividend receivable from A EDERE

a joint venture
Other deposits and receivables H Atz & & W sIE

Company

Prepaid rental and deposits ENHe RIZS

None of the above assets is either past due or
impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

29. N RIE - REREMWE UK

AEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T AREF T
6,523 2,757
28,035 44,783
97,764 74,296
52,361 49,323
36,355 40,309
30,054 10,508
- 4,815
32,133 37,124
283,225 263,915
¥ /N
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARET T ARBTT

227 234

PR EEY EBMIRE o FFA LA
FRAP B B0 A BT Y S R R R Y
FEWRIAB R -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

30. STRUCTURED DEPOSITS

Structured deposits in licensed RAPEARLTMBEFE
banks in the PRC, at amortised RITHEBEETT
cost LABE S PK AN ET =

These structured deposits have terms of less than
one year and have expected annual rates of return
up to 6.3% (2012: 5.2%). Pursuant to the underlying
contracts or notices, these structured deposits are
capital guaranteed upon the maturity date.

31. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND RESTRICTED CASH

Group
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHES
Time deposits EHAITE K

Less: Restricted cash with maturity 5 : —F R 2| HH 2R

date within one year EBEe
Restricted cash with maturity —FLNEHZR
date over one year EBE
Long-term time deposits FRIRITH R A
at bank 7E 8317 3k

Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEEY

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

30. FRMEEFR

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—-_F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARET T ARBTT

1,887,000 710,000

T EBRETRBERIR—F I
TEH & = B6.3%H F F X (20124 :
52%) - IRIBEEEBENARY B4
BT RRNE A 2RER -

BML.RERRESEFYNZRER

rEE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®TR ARETT

436,361 1,026,477
1,131,467 512,836
1,567,828 1,539,313

(400,000) -

(154,445) -

(121,460) -

891,923 1,539,313




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AND RESTRICTED CASH
(CONTINUED)

Company

Cash and bank balances B& RIBTES
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY

The Group’s cash and bank balances and time
deposits at each reporting date are denominated in
the following currencies:

RMB AR
us$ E
HK$ BT

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made
for varying periods of between three months and five
years depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash
and cash equivalents and time deposits approximate
to their fair values.

Restricted cash as at 31 December 2013 represents
balances deposited in the Group’s designated
accounts as required by Ministry of Commerce of the
People’s Republic of China. The Group is required to
deposit no less than 30% of the balance of advances
from customers for sales of prepaid cards.

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

BM1LEERAEEEY (&

NN
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E-F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARB T ARBETT

25,568 670

25,568 670

AEBNZHRE BHMOR S RRITHER
REHFRE T EEFE :

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®TR ARET T

1,453,223 1,223,115
45,678 315,612
68,927 586

1,567,828 1,639,313

RITFAREBEZARTEFRERIZY
FE - THREFRE=EAZLFHET
F BIAREENARBRESFRME -
I 12 & 8 &5 8 E 87 30R R BREUA
B RITRSRE LB &R E LN
AEERT -RERBSEEY TH
FHROEREEEZEQFERES

MR2013F 12 A31HHMZREBE SRR
BREARAFMBEASBRETHREER
BTIRFMNES -RERT £EFER
ATLREERNERNEFEMNZIE
FREEZ0%HIFRIA ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

32.

33.

SHORT-TERM FINANCING NOTES

On 29 March 2013, the Group issued its short-term
financing notes at par value of RMB900 million in the
national inter-bank market in the PRC. The nominal
interest rate is 4.59% per annum and the effective
interest rate is 5.01% per annum. The principal
together with the interest thereon are paid upon
maturity date one year from issuance.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROWINGS
Bank loans: |ITER
Secured B
Unsecured 4K 49
Bank loans repayable: JEEERITER :
Within one year or on demand —F N E K
Over one year but within —FAEERER
two years
Over two years but within MFEUNEERFRN
five years
Total bank borrowings RITIERAERR

Less: Portion classified as current
liabilities
Long-term portion R H (7

Bank loans bear interest at fixed rates or floating
rates.

The Group’s bank loans bore effective interest rates
from 1.4% to 6.0% per annum as at 31 December
2013 and 2.0% to 5.6% per annum as at
31 December 2012.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

32.

o D ERREBRENE D

FHIELE 5

MR2013F 3298, KEEEF HIETTH
MHETTEmMEEAIBTARBENE
AR E 5 - A EFIER4.50%  BEEF
EE5.01%  FEE/TEIHI B A B R A
© Xt e

33. 5T B RITHE K
2013 2012
—E—=% —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBTT
= 15,000
1,933,480 1,433,119
1,933,480 1,448,119
941,268 793,619
308,303 654,500
683,909 -
1,933,480 1,448,119
1,933,480 1,448,119
(941,268) (793,619)
992,212 654,500

RITEFIREEN K FZBF KL -

M2013F12 A31H AL E A IRITE 7%
FBBFRIZ1.4%E6.0%:T B 2012
F12A31HIR2.0%E5.6%:5T & °



33.

34.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Certain of the bank loans of the Group as at
31 December 2012 are secured by the pledge
of certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with an aggregate net book value of
RMB427,224,000.

The Group’s interest-bearing bank borrowings at
each reporting date are denominated in the following
currencies:

RMB AR
uss$ ETT
HK$ ok
TRADE PAYABLES

The trade payable are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on terms of up to 60 days.

An aged analysis of the trade payables at each

reporting date, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

Within three months =@AR

Over three months but within Z@EANEEREAR

six months
Over six months but
within one year
Over one year

—FUE

NEAAEE-FA

34.

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

—l_ SN iE {ﬁ ( i} )

R2012%F12A831H AL BEmFEAS
AR 8427 224,0007THI M E - Jﬁﬁ%&?“
HEEBTFRITAEFENRITERD
ER -

AEEBRESRE BB BIRITERIE
THE®EE

2013 2012

—E—=F —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR T AREF T

1,000 43,495

1,543,736 1,149,222

388,744 255,402

1,933,480 1,448,119
FERE S FIE

ENESHETEE - —RIR60H B

RNEREAHENE I RBEREZAH
HERE DT T -

2013 2012

—E—-=F —ET——F

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®BT T AR F T

1,022,658 995,173

64,100 61,992

34,164 23,664

41,877 30,144

1,162,799 1,110,973
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Payables to suppliers’ employees

Deposits from suppliers
Value-added taxes
Other tax payable

Payable for capital expenditure

Payable for staff costs
Bonus points liabilities

Advances from customers
Due to a related company @
Payable for acquisition of

a joint venture

Payable for acquisition of

a subsidiary
Other payables

Note:

FEAS B P B B 3R
HEEZRS
AT

H &5 B IR
T B AR X
JEfT B TARA
gBBENAERE
EPENA

F& < B8 38 2 A RIA0
WE—Eagtx
& 5R0R

Yo B — FET B B8 % B B A< 3ROR

H A & 1+ 3R

()  The amount due to a related company as at
31 December 2012 represented an amount due to
Nanjing Yaohan Commerce & Trade Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing
Yaohan”), which was controlled by a relative of a

Director, Mr. Chen Jiangiang.

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-

bearing.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

35. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

5. Ht BN RIERETEH

2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR T AREF T
17,490 14,197
77,055 78,064
50,018 47,301
34,033 26,255
220,445 290,012
175,075 158,634
46,300 37,336
1,515,002 1,478,761
= 249

18,431 19,001
4,599 51,133
70,341 62,224
2,228,789 2,263,167

Hat

() M20124E12 831 B ERBEEQ R RIEE
ENER/ BEFEBRAR(TERN
B WA - ZARIAESRERL

EH—BAREIER -

FaiEa T EERL RS -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013

B Z2013F12A31ALFE
36. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 36.7TESR T A

INSTRUMENTS

2013 2012

—E—=F —E—-F

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®BT ARET T

Interest rate swaps 71| 2 45 B - (1,043)

Cross currency swaps TN EMIsHp = 276

- (767)

37.

LONG-TERM PAYABLES 37. REAES FIE

2013 2012
—E—-=F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ TR AREF T
Long-term portion of accrued EEtHeRZ B RBAEH

rental expenses 32,799 23,514

Put options to non-controlling P F FEVE IR AR B A AR M B AEO
shareholders 267,530 267,531
300,329 291,045

Note:

(i) Put options were granted to certain non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary to sell their equity interest
in the subsidiary to the Group at a pre-determined
price in connection with the acquisition of the
subsidiary in November 2009. The put options are
exercisable from 1 January 2010 and have no expiry
date. Holders of the put options need to notify the
Group of the exercise of the options in written form
before November of a calendar year and the Group
has to complete the required transaction and pay
the non-controlling shareholders before 1 May of the
year subsequent to the year in which the notice of
the exercise of put options is received. The balance
represents the present value of amounts payable by
the Group to acquire the non-controlling interests as
if such non-controlling interests were fully acquired at
each of the reporting dates.

Hiat

(i)

B2009F 11 A —HMWBARIME -
BRZMBARE TIEEBRBREE TR
ShENE  EWENREEEREAEE
o H R AE o ROh HI A HR20104F1 A
BRATF  WEFEA - BoHEES
EABRBEBEFI1AZAIAZEBAAN
SETERGHESE  AEBAAR
W R 1T R B AR /8 B F5 A
H 2 BISEAFT 5 A2 5 & A SE4% AR A% 3R A+
Koo ERIEAEBIREIEERIERNE
MNRBEREER LR EERS B
W EZEIE TR R -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013

HZE2013F12A31BIEFE

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES,
OPERATING LEASE
ARRANGEMENTS AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease arrangements
Group as lessee

The Group leases certain of its land and
buildings under operating lease arrangements
with lease terms ranging from one to twenty
years.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

3. JAREE  CEHELZHKE
AN

(a)

follows:

Within one year —FA

In the second to fifth years, F _EFRF(BEEEMF)
inclusive

After five years AFMNUE

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 3§

ReEHERY

A& B E AN
AEBKELEHERHEERT
Tk HHA—E=—T%F-

MN2013%F12/831H » KEEREFT
ARGEGEERENARREENE
SHETENT ¢

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBETT

72,720 51,528
396,683 393,612
1,213,010 1,404,842
1,682,413 1,849,982




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013

EZE2013F12A31BIEFE
38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, 3.HAEME REHERHERE
OPERATING LEASE I AEHE (4E)
ARRANGEMENTS AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a) Operating lease arrangements (continued) (a) REHEZH (A
Group as lessor AEEERH A
The Group leases out certain of its land and AEERBEECEHELRHELAET
buildings under operating lease arrangements T REF HHA—E=1F-
with lease terms ranging from one to twenty
years.
At 31 December 2013, the Group had total 2013F12A31H » AEERET
future minimum lease receivables under ARG R E A R R &R FE R
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants SREMT -
falling due as follows:
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR® TR ARETFT
Within one year —FA 54,390 50,428
In the second to fifth years, F _EFRF(BEEEMF)
inclusive 90,970 89,711
After five years HEFEMNE 57,602 64,103
202,962 204,242
(b) Capital commitments (b) B AEIE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARETF T
Contracted, but not provided for: = 5] 4118 K B4 -
Property, plant and equipment L 1,063,642 540,145

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 30 BB 1% % A fR A 7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

39.ISSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a)

Issued capital
Authorised

Ordinary shares

Rl

Ordinary shares issued and fully paid

As at 1 January 2012,
and 2013

Shares repurchased
and cancelled

As at 31 December 2013

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

R2012%1 B1H K
201341 HA1H

P 52 78 (3 A0 3 88

2013%12A31H

(a) EBITRAE
JEE
No. of shares at
HK$0.01 each

0. ERITRAR#

No. of shares at
HK$0.01 each

2013 2012

Thousands Thousands

20135 20124

T B T

BREE FREE

0.018 T 0.018 7T

10,000,000 10,000,000

BEETRHEEAIK

No. of shares at
HK$0.01 each
BREE
0.0178TH
BOBE

Thousands RMB’ 000

T ARBT T

2,500,000 21,589

(2,104) (17)

2,497,896 21,572




39.ISSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013

(CONTINUED)

(a)

Issued capital (Continued)

During the year, the Company repurchased its
own shares through the Stock Exchange as
follows:

No. of shares at

HE2013F12 8318 I LFE

39. ERITRAK & (&)

(a) SERITRAE (&)
RAREE > KRGS BB I AER
HBesknwmT:

Price Per Share

HK$0.01 each BRRE Aggregate

Thousands Highest Lowest consideration

BTREE B& &1 BERERE

Month of repurchase 0.018 T HK$ HK$ HK$’ 000

fE A4 RR#E B BT FAEL
For the year ended BE-_T—=F

31 December 2013 TZA=ZT-HLEE

November 2013 2013F11A 450 3.98 3.94 1,784

December 2013 201312 A 1,654 3.95 3.87 6,463

8,247

The repurchased shares were subsequently
cancelled and accordingly the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by the
relevant nominal value thereof. The nominal value
of approximately RMB17,000 (2012: Nil) of the
shares cancelled during the year was credited
to issued capital account, and the premium paid
or payable and the related costs incurred for
the repurchase of approximately RMB6,485,000
(2012: Nil) was charged against share premium
account of the Company.

BERENBKREN EABRE@ESR
RARBEHITRABEEED - FR -
PRA LR W EREEDH AR 17,000
TL(2012%F : B) St AT EHITRAKRS -
B8 B B Sk B A s (8 R EE £ 9 A
B AR H) AR 6,485,000 2 5T AR A
IR R ERF (20126 &) o

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 30 BB 1% % A fR A 7



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013

HE2013F12A31HILFE

39. ISSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the difference
between (i) the Company’s cost of investments
in the subsidiaries that were acquired via a
business combination under common control
in the prior year and (i) the aggregate of the
nominal values of the paid-up capital of these
subsidiaries upon acquisition.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the
PRC and the respective articles of association
of the PRC Subsidiaries, each of the PRC
Subsidiaries is required to allocate 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance
with PRC GAAP, to the statutory surplus reserve
(the “SSR”) until this reserve reaches 50% of its
registered capital.

The SSR is non-distributable except in the
event of a liquidation and, subject to certain
restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, can be used to offset accumulated
losses or be capitalised as paid-up capital.
However, the balance of the statutory reserve
fund must be maintained at a minimum of 25%
of the registered capital after these usages.

Discretionary reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the
PRC and the respective articles of association
of the PRC Subsidiaries, certain of the PRC
Subsidiaries transferred a certain percentage
of their profit after tax, at the discretion of the
PRC Subsidiaries’ boards of directors, to the
discretionary reserve. The discretionary reserve
can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to
increase the registered capital.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

39. ERITRAK & (&)

(b) BERERER

ERABREONARRERA B R
Z BB HREEG XA RED
P /B8 72 ] 8O 48 B A AN B (i) i B By 2%
EHEBRARNE R A EAED

ER

() ZEAE®E

REFEAFELRTEMBLAS
BNAEBERAR  FENB AR
% ELBR B 208 A E910% (IR 1R
BAREHENET) DEEEAER
Be(DEERrER])  BHESR
BeEHHEEEEMELRNS0% -

EERBEEHRRBRERINTA S
& MBS AT BURREA
ETERS T AREHERTEEX
BRMEREHER - BEHERE
BR REAELAEERERARER

L AEFMEARN25% o

(d) WERE

RETFERRDERTENRERRE
BMARERAR BT HEMNE
REABREBRRRENNEERD
L (HEEEHEET) 2ERIEH
B BBREIANEFEEEFE

R E RS N E A



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

39.ISSUED CAPITAL AND RESERVES .BBITHRARRE (F)

(CONTINUED)
(e) Company () =27
Exchange
Share fluctuation Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
RO EE EXRBRE Rt BB “E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETR
At 1 January 2012 ©»2012F1 718 2,308,044 (225,765) (21,997) 2,060,282
Total comprehensive income FEXEUERE
for the year - (3,860) (2,266) (6,126)
Interim 2012 dividend 2012F EH R A (81,663) - - (81,663)
Proposed final 2012 dividend BIRE2012FE
RERE (242,589) - - (242,589
At 31 December 2012 and ©®2012F12H318
1 January 2013 %2013F1A1H 1,983,792 (229,625) (24,263) 1,729,904
Total comprehensive income FEXENERE
for the year - (51,691) (844) (52,535)
Interim 2013 dividend 2013F B IR 2 (198,780) - - (198,780)
Repurchase and cancellation e nhnzs (6,485) - - (6,485)
of shares
Proposed final 2013 dividend BRE20135
RERRE (167,235) - - (167,235)
At 31 December 2013 ©®2013F12H31H 1,611,292 (281,316) (25,107) 1,304,869
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

40. BUSINESS COMBINATION

40. bE S #t

On 9 April 2013, the Group acquired a 100% interest
in Nanjing Yaohan at nil consideration, from a related
party, Wuxi Yinian Investment Management Co.,
Ltd., which was controlled by a relative of a Director,
Mr. Chen Jiangiang. Nanjing Yaohan is engaged in

the operation of department stores.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Nanjing Yaohan as at the date of acquisition were

as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Tax payable

Total identifiable net assets at
fair value

Goodwill on acquisition

Satisfied by: Nil consideration

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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MR2013F4HOH - AREE RN 7 &5
BEREEEAERARNUNEZHERER
FNBEHRNEDNEE  BHEFREE
BEERAFIHESMERLEN—BH
BiEd-mR/\ERHEE—KRAEE-

MR \EROTHREENREHAT
ERKH R YR EMT -

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

RS B ER

W FE

Notes RMB’ 000
B 5 ARBTT

18 15,724
1,393

6,980
6,789
(13,471)
(39,234)
(508)

(22,327)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013

EZE2013F12A31BIEFE
40. BUSINESS COMBINATION 40. ¥ & B ()
(CONTINUED)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the WE—HRBARNRERITAT -
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:
RMB’ 000
ARET T
Cash consideration REEE -
Cash and bank balances acquired BESHIRS MIRTEH 6,789
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents DB EEREEEFEES
included in cash flows from MEFNRSRASEEMH
investing activities FmARE 6,789
Since the acquisition, Nanjing Yaohan contributed BB R & Z22013F12A31H 1t
RMB14,381,000 to the Group’s turnover and FE BRNAAEAAEERSKAER
RMB512,000 to the consolidated profit for the year 14,381,000t A BB R A R
ended 31 December 2013. 512,000 V4R A s FI BB °
Had the combination taken place at the beginning & FE R2013F FHI#EIT » A
of the year, the revenue from continuing operations ERRE B RKEBAE KNI ALEF S
of the Group and the profit of the Group for the A A AR ¥4,166,444,0007T K A R #&
year would have been RMB4,166,444,000 and 736,630,0007T °
RMB736,630,000, respectively.
41.ASSETS OF A DISPOSAL GROUP N AOERBESEEEREENR
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE AR
AND DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED
LIABILITIES
At the acquisition date of Yangzhou Fengxiang R2012F W HMNEHENEBR QA
Commerce Co., Ltd. (“Yangzhou Fengxiang”) in ([HBNL¥ D) Z2HE AEEREAERE
the year 2012, the Group decided to dispose of a BETRAREBEHPESY  BHEASE
subsidiary company acquired from that business BEXEXBREN FRPEER K
S\ = 5 = & 3 A B o
combination, which are not relevant to the principal FRA] o iR B PR B3 s R RO A

s N 2 & AL ,

operation of the Group. According to IFRS 5 igiﬁﬁ%iéggﬁgaﬁ%%ﬁzﬂ

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued RN T IR BN ST R R

B = /\*[m =3 /\i%;\ I 127 /N 32 z

Operations, the Group classified these non-current ”&’\% E\,,'J)?E'?EH AEWRATE
BREEKARTE °

assets and the subsidiary company as held for sale at
the acquisition date and measured at fair values less
costs to sell.

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 30 BB 1% % A fR A 7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

41.

42,

ASSETS OF A DISPOSAL GROUP
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
AND DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Group had disposed these
held for sale non-current assets amounting to
RMB6,000,000. The Group did not change the
intention of selling the rest the subsidiary company,
and they were still classified as held for sale. As at
31 December 2013, final negotiations for the rest of
the held for sale subsidiary company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions with
related parties during the year:

(@ In 2010, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Nanjing Yaohan to lease
certain store areas from Nanjing Yaohan for its
supermarket operation. The lease agreement
was terminated in June 2012. The rental
expense charged by Nanjing Yaohan for the
year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to
RMB498,000. The outstanding balances with
Nanjing Yaohan was as follows:

Other payables and accruals

As disclosed in note 40, the Group acquired
100% equity interests in Nanjing Yaohan
Commerce & Trade Co. Ltd. from Wuxi Yinian
Investment Management Co. Ltd, which was
controlled by a relative of a Director, Mr. Chen
Jiangiang, in April 2013. From then on, Nanjing
Yaohan was changed from a related party to a
subsidiary of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group:

Short-term employee benefits & 2 {E S % FAl
Post-employment benefits BRE

Total compensation paid TG FEFEERAS
to key management O % B 48 58
personnel

Further details of directors’ and the chief
executive’s emoluments are included in note 11
to the financial statements.

43.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

2. BB ARG (&)

b) AEBEEREEABNFH

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR TR AREF T
6,928 9,086

228 413

7,156 9,499

REBEERITHRAHFIOE—
FREBRM B RRMTIIRE -

43. R B A R AV E R

Company AT
2013 2012
—E—=5F —E——%F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R AREFIT
Unlisted shares, at cost KA EHE R IE E TR (D - -
Loans to subsidiaries REHFHBARMNER 1,467,881 1,993,178
1,467,881 1,993,178

The amounts advanced to the subsidiaries included
in the interests in subsidiaries above are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

FAALAMEAREENBNNE QR
FIBTYEA - %8 MEREEERGK -

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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HZE2013F12A31BIEFE
43.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 43. R B QB ()
(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group are as AEBTIERBATEBOT
follows:
Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name HEMAY/ RIK BRfT/BR AEBEEL activities
AAER KeEwHRAH SERRAHE BEEDL TEEHR
Springland International Group BVI US$1 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited @ 12 June 2006 1ETL REER
EnEREEERA RO ERELHES
200656H12H
Cleavebury Limited © Hong Kong HK$1 100% Investment holding
25 January 2006 18T RERR
EE
20065 1H25H
Novel Vanguard Investment Limited @ BVI US$1 100% Investment holding
MBREFR AR 21 November 2011 1% REZKR
ERELEHS
2011F11 A21H
Sonton Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$38,000,000 100% Investment holding
BACERRRA 17 June 1993 38,000,000% 7T RERR
B
1993F6H17H
Jiangsu Springland International PRC/Mainland China  US$360,000,000 100% Investment holding
Holdings (Group) Ltd. 12 February 1996 360,000,0003% T REER
THEMBRZREBFR AR B/ B R
1996F2 5128
Shanghai Springland Enterprise PRC/Mainland China  RMB100,000,000 100% Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd. @ 6 November 1996 ARE REZR
TERENCEREERAFO mE /B 100,000,0007¢
199611 H6H
Changshu Springland Department Store PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB20,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 29 July 2004 ARE department stores
FAZEMASERDA HE /B 20,000,0007C B2BEE
200447 H29H
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DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

43. R B A R AV = ()

(CONTINUED)

43. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group are as

follows: (continued)

NS

]

TEMBARFENT - (&)

Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name HEMRYL IR BRT/ T AEEES activities
AEER KEHERAN LTERRAHE BREESL EX
Danyang Springland Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB60,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 17 March 2004 AR department stores
REEREEERARTY mE/RE R 60,000,0007T BERERE
200453 A17H
Jiangsu Datonghua Shopping Centre PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB35,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 14 March 2001 ARE supermarkets
IHAFERNTPLOERARO HE/RER 35,000,0007T gEBm
2001F3A14H
Jiangyin Springland Department Store PRC/Mainland China  RMB130,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd.® 5 June 2003 AR department stores
TIREHMBEERARO mE/RE R 130,000,0007T and supermarkets
2003F6A5H BEBEE
R
Jintan Datonghua Shopping Centre PRC/Mainland China  RMB215,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 17 April 2003 AR department stores
SEAFERNPLERAA RE/RERM 215,000,007 and supermarkets
2003F4A17H BEBEE
p&inil
Liyang Datonghua Shopping Centre PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 28 June 2002 AR supermarkets
EGAFERNPLOERAFY HmE/ RE R 10,000,0007T gEBm
2002%6H28H
Liyang Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB110,000,000 100% Operation of
Centre Co., Ltd. @ 29 April 2002 ARE department stores
G N\EHEERLERARY HmE/ RE R 110,000,0007T BERER
20024 A29H
Liyang No.1 Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB1,225,000 100% Property holding
Co., Ltd. @ 22 May 2001 AR BEME
REmRE—EERAR hE/ RE R 1,225,0007C
2001F5H22H

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013

HZE2013F12A31ALLFE

43.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 43. AMEB AR N ER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group are as RNEBTFEMBATZBET @ ()

follows: (continued)

Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name EMEY/BIK BRT/ T AEEES activities
AEER KEHERAN LTERRAHE BREESL EX
Ma’anshan Yaohan Trading Center PRC/Mainland China  RMB141,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 22 August 2008 ARE department stores
SRUNEHEEERAAY mE/RER 141,000,000 BEBEE
2008F8H22H
Wuxi Springland Investment PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB490,000,000 100% Investment holding
Management Co., Ltd. @ 15 April 1980 AR REER
EREHMREERERATO RE/RERM 490,000,000
198044 A 158
Wuxi Angexin Technology Co., Ltd. © PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100% Provision of
EHTRENBERAF 27 July 2006 ARE technology service
R E/ R E R 5,000,0007C RAEER TR
2006F7H27H
Wuxi Datonghua Shopping Co., Ltd. © PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB20,000,000 100% Operation of
EHAGERYERRAY 25 September 2006 ARE supermarkets
R B/ R E R 20,000,0007T Gadm
2006F9H25H
Wuxi Huiquan Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Provision of
EHEZMRBRAR 26 March 2007 ARE logistics service
R E/ R E R 10,000,0007T R RS
200743 A26H
Wuxi Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB301,911,000 100% Operation of
Centre Co., Ltd. @ 25 March 1994 AR department stores
EHNEHBHEROERDFY HE/HREMNM 301,911,000 BEBEE
1994434258
Wuxi Yuandongli Consulting Co., Ltd. © PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 100% Provision of
EHREYNEABRAFO 26 April 2006 ARE consultation service
B/ E R 2,000,0007C REEARS
2006F4 A26H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

43. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group are as

follows: (continued)

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

43. R B A R AV = ()

NS

]

TEMBARFENT - (&)

Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name EMEY/BIK BRT/ T AEEES activities
AEER REWBRAN EERBRAEE BREESL FTEER
Yixing Springland Department Store PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB80,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 24 May 2000 AR department stores
HEEHMEEERARTO mE/RE R 80,000,0007¢ BEBEE
2000F5H24H
Yixing Housa Plaza Co., Ltd. © PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB30,000,000 100% Operation of
HEMMEESERAA 13 February 2004 ARE department stores
R E/ R E R 30,000,0007C KEREE
2004F2A13H
Zhenjiang Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB350,000,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd. @ 28 August 2006 AR department stores
BEIMNEHBEERRAFY RE/ R E R 350,000,000 and supermarkets
200658 A28H Kersl
R
Nantong Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China RMB31,938,786 58.08% Operation of
Joint Stock Company Limited 16 September 1993 ARE department stores
mAEHEERHERA T mE/RERN 31,938,7867C BEBEE
199349/ 168
Nantong Boda Tengfei Advertising PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 52.27% Provision of
Co., Ltd. ¥ 19 January 2006 ARE advertising service
HRBABRESERA T hE/RER 500,0007T RIEEE R
2006F1 A19H
Changxing Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB75,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 17 November 2009 ARE department stores
RENGHEBERAAY B/ R E R 75,000,0007 and supermarkets
200911 A17H BEREER
il
Taixing Datonghua Shopping Center PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 2 December 2010 ARE supermarkets
FEATAGEBYPOERD T HmE/ RE R 10,000,0007T edm
201012 A2H
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Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

43. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group are as

follows: (continued)

43. R B A R AV = ()

NS

]

TEMBARFENT - (&)

Percentage

Place and date of Nominal value of of equity

incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable

registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name HEMRYL IR BRT/ T AEEES activities
AEER KEHERAN LTERRAHE BREESL EX
Changzhou Yaohan Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 17 September 2010 ARE department stores
EMNAEEEERQE B/ R E R 10,000,0007T and supermarkets
2010%9A17H BEREER
il
Nanjing Datonghua City-Supermarket PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 14 September 2010 ARE supermarkets
BRAGEATBTER AR HE/RER 3,000,000 gEBm

2010F9A14H
Anging Yuexin Xinglida Real Estate PRC/Mainland China  RMB130,000,000 100% Property holding
Development Co., Ltd. @ 8 February 2007 ARE EX=RYES
ZENEENERWERBARATARY RERE R 130,000,0007C
20072 A8H

Xuancheng Yaohan Commerce & Trade PRC/Mainland China  RMB153,000,000 100% Operation of
Co., Ltd. @ 1 September 2011 ARE department stores
EHN\EHEEERAAY HmE/ RER 153,000,0007T and supermarkets
201149A18 BEREBER
ikl

Jiangsu Green Land Agriculture

Technology Development Co., Ltd. @

TEHESHREENRERERAFY

Yangzhou Fengxiang Commerce
Co., Ltd. @
HMNEEEEERRAY

Jiaxing Yaohan Commerce & Trade
Co., Ltd.
FEN\BHBHEBRAA

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

PRC/Mainland China
23 August 2011
HE/RE R
201148H23H

PRC/Mainland China
28 June 1993
HE/RE R
1993F6428H

PRC/Mainland China
11 September 2012
RE/ AN
2012F9A11H

RMBS, 100,000
ARE
5,100,0007C

US$10,000,000
10,000,000% 7

RMB444,800,000
AR®
444,800,0007C

100% Supply of vegetables
e %

51% Operation of
department stores
KEBERE

100% Operation of
department stores
and supermarket
BEBEE
R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Group are as

follows: (continued)

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

43. R B A R AV = ()

NS

JiE}

TEMBARFENT - (&)

Percentage
Place and date of Nominal value of of equity
incorporation/  issued ordinary/ attributable
registration registered to the
and operations share capital Company Principal
Name HEMRYL IR BRT/ T AEEES activities
AEER KEHERAN LTERRAHE BREESL EX
Nanjing Yaohan Commerce & PRC/Mainland China ~ RMB19,000,000 100% Operation of
Trade Co., Ltd. ©® 5 November 2007 ARE department stores
ER\BHEEERAA hE /R E R 19,000,0007¢ BERERE
200711 A5H
Wuxi BeitangDatonghua Shopping PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% Operation of
Center Co., Ltd. @ 21June 2013 AR supermarkets
BHELEARLBNERD A hE/FE A 10,000,0007¢ mEEm
2013F6H21H
Wuxi Xishan Yaohan Lifestyle PRC/Mainland China  US$102,040,000 100% Operation of
Center CO., Ltd.? 14 August 2013 102,040,000 T department stores
EHBUNAEREEE BERAR RE/ R E R BEREE
2013F8H14H

(@) Except for Springland International Group Company
Limited and Novel Vanguard Investment Limited, which
are directly owned by the Company, all of the above
Group companies are indirectly owned subsidiaries of
the Company.

(b)  This subsidiary was acquired by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

(c) Types of legal entities:

U]
]
@©)

(4)

Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

Sino-foreign equity joint venture

Limited liability company invested by foreign
invested enterprise

Limited liability company

@ KBEMEREEGRAFRLNERER

fR

ES

REBHARFEEERIN LA

ERFRHRARAEZEEANNMNE R

al e

(b) HZ2013F12A31HILLFE  AEEE
WEZMBAR -

()  EREREEL:

2EIEEEDHE

NGB
HIERECERENERER
NE]

BREFERF
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B 7% ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 44,

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments at each reporting date are as
follows:

31 December 2013
2013%F12H31H

Financial assets

Financial assets

BEHNEIHNER

[

-

Group
rEE

THMEE

REREAH SHEEMT

AmiRmE (&

at fair value
through profit
or loss - Held Available-
for trading for-sale
BAYE Loans and financial
sTAERE  receivables assets
MeEMEE- EXR A HE Total
BERS FE W R I8 SREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR%TR AR%T=x ARETR
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE - - 160,244 160,244
Trade receivables BN & 5508 - 13,026 13,026
Financial assets included in FTAENTE &
prepayments, deposits R E o YRR
and other receivables MEREE - 196,306 196,306
Structured deposits BEREUER - 1,887,000 1,887,000
Restricted cash TRE®EES - 554,445 554,445
Long-term time deposits BRBRTHRS
at bank EHFR - 121,460 121,460
Cash and cash equivalents ReRhBeEEY - 891,923 891,923
- 3,664,160 160,244 3,824,404
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DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals

Short-term financing notes

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Financial liabilities included in long-term
payables

N8 HRE

it AR AR
Bt ERNERAR
EHRES

st BRITER
SPARBIRMTRMN
TRARE

4. ZBRETHEMT A (&)

SRAaE
Financial
liabilities
at fair value
through profit Financial
or loss - held liabilities at
for trading amortised
BOYE cost
FTABE  REHRX
HemaE- HEH Total
BERS tREE @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AREBTR
- 1,162,799 1,162,799
- 408,361 408,361
- 930,353 930,353
- 1,933,480 1,933,480
- 267,529 267,529
- 4,702,522 4,702,522

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 30 BB 1% % A fR A 7
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B 7% ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013

HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

31 December 2012
2012412 A31H

Financial assets

Available-for-sale investments AHEEERE

Trade receivables [EWE 5 A

Financial assets included in FTAENTE &
prepayments, deposits RE o MR IR R
and other receivables SREE

Structured deposits HEEETT

Derivative financial instruments fTESBMIA

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREEED

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 3§

4. ZBRETHEMT A (&)

Group
RE
SREE
Financial assets
at fair value
through profit
or loss - Held Available-
for trading for-sale
NS Loans and financial
TABRE receivables assets
HeRMEE- Bk AEnE Total
BIERS JE YR IR SHEE Bt
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFL AREBTL ARBFL ARBFL
- - 108,765 108,765
- 8,610 - 8,610
- 167,052 - 167,052
- 710,000 - 710,000
276 - - 276
- 1,639,313 - 1,639,313
276 2,424,975 108,765 2,534,016
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DR EE U

Year ended 31 December 2013

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Derivative financial instruments

Financial liabilities included in
long-term payables

31 December 2013
2013F12831H

Financial assets - Company

Loans to subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

EREHKE
sStARMREN AN
EHERNERAR
fHERITRER
TEERIA
AR HE A SR
cRAR

REIEENCIES S
ReMREFED

HE2013F12 8318 I LFE
4. ZFERE eI A (&)

Gl =
Financial
liabilities
at fair value
through profit Financial
or loss - held liabilities at
for trading amortised
BRTE cost
AABE RESENA
MEemBE- FHEM Total
BERS E =N @it
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
- 1,110,973 1,110,973
- 514,880 514,880
- 1,448,119 1,448,119
1,043 - 1,043
- 267,531 267,531
1,043 3,341,503 3,342,546

THEE-XQF

Loans and
receivables
-§7952

FE W R IE
RMB’ 000
AR TR

1,467,881
25,568

1,498,449
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Year ended 31 December 2013

HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

31 December 2012
2012412 A31H

Financial assets — Company

Loans to subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
and the Company’s financial instruments, other
than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

Group

Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE
Derivative financial instruments fTESMIA
Financial liabilities tREE
Short-term financing notes EHEE 5
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t &R
Derivative financial instruments fTHESRITA

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

BEIEINGIE=
HeRReEED 670

4. ZBRETHEMT A (&)

TREE-ARQF

Loans and
receivables
BERE

JE YR IR
RMB’ 000
ARETT

1,993,178

1,993,848

45. e TEN LA FERATES
MERE

AEE ApFeRTAKRBEMNAF
BN (REENREATFEZERTAR

SN EYDATIATS
rEE
Carrying amounts Fair values
R E & AEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
“2-=f "% CZB-=f C"T-_f
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR ARBTRT ARETET
160,244 108,765 160,244 108,765
- 276 - 276
160,244 109,041 160,244 109,041
930,353 - 930,353 -
1,933,480 1,448,119 1,933,480 1,448,119
- 1,043 - 1,043
2,863,833 1,449,162 2,863,833 1,449,162




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Management has assessed that the fair values
of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
structured deposits, available-for-sale investments,
trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, amounts due to subsidiaries,
and approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of short-term financing notes and
interest-bearing bank borrowings have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for
short-term financing notes and interest-bearing bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2013 was assessed
to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments
with a licensed bank. Derivative financial instruments,
including deliverable RMB/HK$ cross currency
swaps and interest rate swaps, are measured using
valuation techniques similar to forward pricing and
swap models, using present value calculations. The
models incorporate various market observable inputs
including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign
exchange spot and forward rates and interest rate
curves. The carrying amounts of cross currency
swaps and interest rate swaps are the same as their
fair values.

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

45. M T AN AFERATESE

SESAC Y

BEERBEFHASRASEEY X
RERED HEBUEFR AIHHER
B RBURESRE EBNEZRA G
ATENFRIE - BE M EMEYGRIEN
BMEE FTAEMEMNTIE EBHER
K FEETHI B A R AM R FER - AR
HEIREE  ZFEEXBENAFE
HEHRE(EMRS -

BRE—LRAMNRSGREEEFTE
E-—REBHRST RMEENER
BEMREERRE T RAFEEES T
M B AR R R ZE R R MAEH A FE

RS REBENQFEMBRITER
M ERBEMHERRRSIMAOIRR
HBE 2ZRABBUTENRRE
ERRBRAMIBEREE AEER_-F
— =T A=1T-BENEHERER
METSIRTTIE KM B B AR R 1K 3R
ERTNERT -

Lt RERENAFENERESFRS
PRERETE °

AEERFENRITRIITEEZRITA
W - TESRT A BRAXNER
MARYE BB ERERETREE
ERBEUEREEREMMET R R
M ERA  WAREBHE - HELE
RZzEMSAEREZBERYTERE
B SN R B B S iR B EE R K ) R A
R RN B AR R H 0 B [ (B
BEEARNFE-H-
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45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

instruments:

Group

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December

2013:

Available-for-sale investments

45. eMITEN A TFERDATFES

SESAC Y

DFEEREE
NTNERBIRASEERTANRFE

FRARE

rEE

RO013F 1231 HEZ L\ -FlEFFEMEE -

Fair value measurement using

AFEFENEA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ERHIE BEXRT BRARA
WEE HBRERBEAE BRBAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-% £ F=H ot
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETR ARET ARETR AR®TR
AfHELE 146,134 - - 146,134

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 December

2012:

Available-for-sale investments
Derivative financial instruments

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

RO012F12H31 AIZ A FlEFGTEMEE -

Fair value measurement using

DY ETRA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
E3EE EvNGl| EvNdil
MEmE EERHEAE  HERHAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R FH =4 B
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETFT AR®TT AREFTT ARETR
AHHERE 108,655 - - 108,655
fTHEERIA - 267 - 267
108,655 267 - 108,922
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HE2013F12 8318 I LFE

45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE A5. eMITENLAFERATFESE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL MR (E)

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AVPEEREEE)

Group rEE

Liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December RO013F 12431 B 2\ FlEFEE 1 -

2013:

Fair value measurement using
ATEHRDRA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

ERMS EXT BEAFRH

WHEE EBZBAE BEBAE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E-& et E=R B

RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TR ARBTR AR%TR

Derivative financial instruments TESRTAE - - = =

Liabilities measured at fair value: as at 31 December R20129F 12 531 A% N FlEFFE B E -
2012:

Fair value measurement using

AFEFENHRA

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BT BAA EV |
WHRE BREAE BEHAE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E—R E-H E=R ke

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT  AREBTE ARBTT ARETR

Derivative financial instruments fTEERTA - 1,043 - 1,043
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FA UWENBEENMVHEEEAT
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and ENEETEF—RAMFE_fzEER
no transfers into or out of Level 3 (for both financial NEER A S HE = (20129 : £) -

assets and financial liabilities) (2012: Nil).

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 30 BB 1% % A fR A 7
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other
than derivatives, comprise bank loans, short-term
financing notes and cash and short-term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
bank loans with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings) and the Group’s equity.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. BRI EEEEREEK

AEENETESRIA  BRITERIN -
BRETEFEHRES RelEH
TR ZFETMIANTIERER/A
SHEEKLEET -AKEBARER
MMhHEEERELNEREERAE
MERE SRR ENE 5 HA o

AEBSRTAEELNTERBRERN X
Rk SNERR  EERBERSE R
R EFSFHNIREERE LEEE
BB - BT

M RE
AEEMAASOMSNREBRRER
HEAKEIREB N ERF ENRITERE
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EZE2013F12A31BIEFE
46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. I EREEBERBEK (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Interest rate risk (continued) MR ()
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity
BEmm,  BRBAEAN  E@Esm
CR2) 0, G 2) O 2)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB®TR AR¥TR
Year ended 31 December 2013 EH £2013F12A31H L FE
uUs$ ETT 50 (5,079) (3,809)
HK$ B 50 (164) (123)
uss$ E7T (50) 5,079 3,809
HK$ ke (50) 164 123
Year ended 31 December 2012 & Z=2012F12A31H L FE
RMB AR 50 (47) (35)
uss$ E7T 50 (4,482) (3,361)
HK$ ok 50 (426) (319)
RMB AR (50) 47 35
USs$ ETT (50) 4,482 3,361
HK$ B (50) 426 319

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 30 BB 1% % A fR A 7
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. IS EEEEEERBUE (&)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland
China and all transactions are conducted in RMB.
Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities were
denominated in RMB, except for the certain bank
balances denominated in US$ and HK$ as disclosed
in note 31 and bank loans denominated in US$ as
disclosed in note 33.

The Group’s assets and liabilities denominated
in US$ and HK$ were mainly held by certain
subsidiaries incorporated outside Mainland China
who had US$ or HK$ as their functional currencies,
and the Group did not have material foreign currency
transactions in Mainland China during the year.
Therefore, the Group had immaterial foreign currency
risk.

Credit risk

The Group has no concentration of credit risk. The
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and structured
deposits are mainly deposits with state-owned banks
in Mainland China. The credit risk of the Group’s
financial assets, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, structured deposits, trade receivables
and other receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts to these instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of
funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool.
This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g.,
trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank loans. Pursuant to the credit facility
intention letters provided by certain banks, the
banks had agreed to provide additional loans up to
RMB2,960,000,000, subject to available facilities,
upon the Group’s request.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

46.

Br % ¥R MY RE

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

BHRREERFERBE (&)

REE SR
AEBMNBRERADASTALNES
EROEAR ZTAEZEREEMIAR
TREE(WRWESHIR) WA &
KEKERBNEFRERE

AEBMEEEEARBFETER MR
BESHEBEENETEMENFE -
BEAEEZFX  ERETERITHR
BEREEE BROTBRERERHEARE
2,960,000,000TH E FREEE °

BEAREHR  ASENERAESR
H(RAORTRARGFE) ERO TR
Bt -

3to0 12 1t05 Over 5
Less than months years years
Ondemand 3 months =z = bk Total
20135 REXR =EAR T+=fA irk:3 HE Hi
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETR AR%®Tn AR¥TR ARE®Tn AR%Tn AR%ETx
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t 8 E 17 - 204485 742,935 1,042,411 - 2,009,831
Short-term financing notes RHRES - 941,310 - - - 941,310
Trade payables ENES7E 353,279 809,520 - - - 1,162,799
Financial liabilities included in SARMERNTER
other payables and accruals [EXERNERER 408,361 - - - - 408,361
Financial liabilities included in STAREBENHE
long-term payables NeRakE - - - 267,529 - 267,529
761,640 1975315 742,935 1,309,940 - 4,789,830

SPRINGLAND INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. IS EEEEEERBUE (&)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued) KEBELEK (&)
31012 1105 Over 5
2012 Less than months years years
Ondemand 3 months =F - k3 Total
2012% RERE =ZEAR  TZfRA nE BE s
RMB’'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT AREBTT ARET:
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5 B8R 1TE - 323381 406,197 669,394 - 1488972
Trade payables ERES5E 157,442 953,531 - - - 1,110,973
Financial liabilities included in SEAE B 3B R
other payables and accruals EiERNSRAE 514,880 - - - - 514880
Derivative financial instruments THEEBIA - - 1,043 - - 1,043
Financial liabilities included in STARBERTE
long-term payables mepakE - - - 267,531 - 267,531
672,322 1,276,912 497,240 936,925 - 3,383,399
Capital management BEAREE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2012.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes interest-bearing bank borrowings, trade
payables, other payables and accruals less structured
deposits, restricted cash, long-term time deposits
at bank and cash and cash equivalents. Capital
represents equity attributable to owners of the parent.
The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the end of
the reporting periods were as follows:
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47.

48.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Capital management (continued)
Group

Short-term financing notes EHIRE S
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t B R 171E &
Trade payables JERTE 5 RIB

Other payables and accruals

Less: Structured deposits W ST

Restricted cash XREBES
Long-term time deposits ERIRITH R
at bank EHIFE R
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEYD
Net debt (ER Ot

Equity attributable to owners
of the parent

SRREE ARGED

Equity and net debt EmREKFRE
Gearing ratio EEBENLE
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2013 and up to the
date of this report, the Company repurchased a total
of 8,086,000 shares at an aggregate consideration
of HK$31,621,000. These repurchased shares were
cancelled on 3 March 2014. The number of issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this report is
2,489,810,000.

APPROVAL OF THESE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
These financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on
11 March 2014.

46.

HiENREREFER

47.

48.
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Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HIEFE

BHRREERFERBE (&)

EXREE(H)
EE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR T AREF T
930,353 -
1,933,480 1,448,119
1,162,799 1,110,973
2,228,789 2,263,167
(1,887,000) (710,000)
(554,445) -
(121,460) -
(891,923) (1,539,313)
2,800,593 2,572,946
4,796,172 4,478,397
7,596,765 7,051,343
37% 36%
WMEHEEER

RZE—=F+-A=+—HEEAR
= HE AR A E A £8,086,000/%
f&1n - 484K (8 A31,621,0000 7T © It &
EEEROER_—_E—NE=A=H:
Mo ARNBEHEAREAH B BITHR
8B A2,489,810,0000% °

BBHRROHE

ZHERERA0I4FIAIIBEREES
oM BB AR o
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
EFUBEREE

Year ended 31 December
BEE+-A=+—-HLEE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“EENF ZT-%F Z2——% =ZT--§f CZEBE-=F%
RMB million
(AREBETL)
FINANCIAL RESULTS B EE
TSP (note 1) WEMBIERE (1) 4,734 6,853 8,697 9,859 11,135
Revenue LON 2,286 2,990 3,602 3,807 4,162
Profit from operation L E T 425 659 848 948 1,026
Profit for the year FEEA 249 375 592 656 737
Profit attributable to SRAEE AN
owners of the parent ikl 248 372 581 651 730
Earnings per share BRAERRES
attributable to ordinary BFEAEGER
equity holders of the A (ARES)
parent (RMB cents) (Hz2) 15 18 23 26 29
(note 2)
As at 31 December
Rt=A=t+-H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“EFTNE ZF-FF -F—F ZF--Ff C-B-=%
RMB million
(ARBBEL)
SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL Bi R ABHE
POSITION
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,150 4,507 5,908 7,515 8,235
Current assets RBEE 1,873 2,203 2,845 2,867 3,897
Total assets BEE 6,023 6,710 8,753 10,382 12,132
Current liabilities nEEE 3,394 2,178 3,117 4,258 5,344
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 1,573 716 1,476 1,418 1,762

Total liabilities BERE 4,967 2,894 4,593 5,671 7,106

Net assets EEFE 1,056 3,816 4,160 4,711 5,026

Notes: Hiat:

(1) TSP represents the sum of gross revenue from (1) HEMSREABEESTIELHEE &
concessionaire sales, revenue from direct sales and rental EHEWARBEKRABLSEE -
Income.

2) The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the 2 BEZZNF+_A=Z=+—HLFE

year ended 31 December 2009 is based on the profit
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent
for the year ended 31 December 2009, adjusted for the
after-tax amounts of preference dividends of preference
shares classified as equity and the weight average
number of ordinary shares in issue during each of the year
ended 31 December 2009 as if 1,985,336,000 shares in
issue on the assumption that the capitalisation issue, had
occurred at the beginning of the year.
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